CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2011

Prepared by:
Dan Defnall
Director of Finance

Submitted By:
Jeff Eady
City Manager



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

TABLE QF CONTENTS
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Page
Letter Of TranSIMItEal.... ... it er s e ren s ese e s e e s emssesem ey ee st et s e e et i-v
OrganiZatioNal CRAIT ...t e s s e et s o ene s eae et e s ems e sses e s semesess et vi
List OF PrINCIPAl OffICIAIS..c..u.e. et senimct e st vaet s ssas s ser s aess e eeesess s see et e ean et se s ses e es e seen e eeesseee st vii
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in FINancial REPOIING .......ecovveerrrereserecssssessesessessssessssessssesssneses viii
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent AUItOr'S REPOTT ..o recee e eres e ses st sesoeseens s s st s e setemssne s e eessesssesemt s e s 1and?2
Management’s DiSCUSSION @Nd ANGIYSIS ..o sen e sses s s e eseseses e s seeseseens s st em e 3-1
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:
SEALEMENT OF NEE ASSELS .oviiiiisticrcictr e es s s s eenes s seeesr b e st sesess s o s st s e emesms et srete e eee s seee e e 12
SHAMENT Of ACHIVIHIES 1..vrecciivriie st ee s s ne e e s eeesns e s s e sme e e s es et ee ettt eees 13
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet — GOVErNMENTAl FUNUS ......cocceccrrceisiceesessese s eeseseeessseesessenssssesssnsssoneessess st s eee s e 14
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — GOVErnMENtal FUNUS .......ccveeeereeevesicie e cesseseesseeeseessessesssmssesseessesmns sonsssonsssasssns 15
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of ACHVIHES...cvvvereeeeseeeessseeee oo 16
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances — Budget {GAAP Basis) and Actual— General FUNG.......oeeeeeveeeeeceeeeeever s eeeon 17 and 18
Statement of Net ASSets — Proprietary FUNG ... e seesessnessessseeeeseeeseoss e eessesessseeeseeeeen 19
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Fund Net ASSets — Proprietary FUNG ...t e ene s eeeseenessesessssne s s seese s e sesessasessee e 20
Statement of Cash FIOWS — Propriefary FUNG ........ccceoromiicc s eee e eceeeesessvesseessssesssseosesesssesssens 21
NOES tO FiNAanCial SLAtEMENTS .....cccocccei ittt ses s seseb s e e sen s s sens e seen e s ee st st e seeee e eeeee 22 -48
Required Supplementary Information:
Schedule of FUNGING PrOgress.. .. s ssre s sss sessssessasessseeseseesesesesssssssssssosesessesssssoesesssssossenene e 49
Combining Statements and Schedules:
Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Governmental FUNUS ....o.eeeeeeeeeeeerreeee oo teses s sesss e 50
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances ~ Nonmajor GovernMental FUNGS ......cccovvieecereeeseeseeeeeeeeeeessesesssmssseseseses sessesssesssomsessses 51
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance — Budget and Actuat:
Emergency COMMURICALIONS FUNM w.oocviiicereeerecenc e e eeee s ses e seseesesesse s s sees e ee e s e 52
HOLEIMOTE] TAX FUND ...t ver s s sas e s s st seseersensms sess s se sttt st e 53
ConfiScated ASSEES FUNC.......ccciicceeeceer i cs s es s s s een s see s ss e st e s e oo st st en st ene 54



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

TABLE OF CONTENTS {Continued)

Page
Combining Statements and Schedules: (Continued)
Schedule of Expenditures of Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax
Proceeds — 2008 ISSUE ... seer s seersassessss s e e sassnerssssesssmssssasesessnsssssnrssassessssssssessnnessesson 56
Components Units:
Statement OF CASH FIOWS .....cicic it it rens s ee e sese st s s sess s sessssnmsen s saneene et sesesensesesansemesemnns 57
STATISTICAL SECTION
Fund information:
NEt ASSELS DY ACTIVIY oottt st as st s s e esene s st e en st seme s et samesnsons 58
Changes iN Net ASSELS......cui e s s s st ses s s s e st assns s seas s sess e sase st sae s sn e smmesanssseaes 59 and 60
Fund Balances, GOVErNMENtal FUNUS ...t sessessaensssesssssesnassesssssesssss s s ssmesssssssesness 61 and 62
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental FUNOS ......ueecvcececnceeeessseeressessorsessems sesesesesssssessssres 63 and 64
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable PrOPErtY .........ocuviiecceeecereeesceessssseesesessseesstssensens 65
PrOPErtY TaAX RALES .ottt s bn s sas e e s s st e s et e e essee s et n st haen 66
PriNCIPal PrOPerty TaXPaYers i ceccssessers s ss e ssessssnesssssnsssssssssessms ssssessassasssssns sesssmesssssssessassseessessssssssanen 67
Property Tax Levies and CORCHIONS ...t escmseesses s s s sesessnensessessme s sesnesesnesssensssssmresmssen 68
Local Option SAles Tax HISTOIY .o irceeritenee e s errsessessseseesemerssses e eessssseessrssssessesssasssesssst sommsssssessresesses 69
Ratios of Outstanding Debt BY TYPE ... s ss s sen s st b s e ee et s e sea s seees s e ree s 70
Legal Debt Margin INFOrMEtIoN ..o ceacee s cene s seees s sae e sens e s e e smeas s sere s e e smn e sessnne 71
Direct and Overlapping Governmental ACHVItIES Debt........c.ccouieeiececeicsnriietseeessssesnsseessesssmsessssesmsesesssessons 72
Demographic and ECONOMIIC SLAISHICS ...ccovervirisireecenssems e erscse s ssssearsrs st sassesssssnssseseessasessenssnertsossseseeme soes 73
Ten Largest EMPIOYErs i WIOTTOW ...t sesssesserssssenssvassssesnsssessssssssssessassesesnssssosssses sossssesen 74
Full Time Equivalent City EMPIOYEes DY DEPAIEMENL c..cvvvveeeieceecereeecsrsrssestssesssesseesssssessssssmssessesest sememeeseeeen 75
Public Safety Operating INicators by FUNCHION ..v.vuevceeeciericnec e eectsestserce s smssssssesseesssesssnssaesssssseresesesaes 76
CAPILAl ASSEES .oiceieciiiesiiti et et be s s s ess e sear st raa et s et st eemene e sene e srat st emt e et e eee e 77



INTRODUCTORY SECTION



www.cilyofmorrow.com

1500 MORROW ROAD
MORROW, GEORGIA 30260
Office: (770) 961-4002

Fax: (770) 960-3002

Geared for Quality Growth

December 18, 2011

The Citizens of the City of Morrow, Georgia
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Coungil
of the City of Morrow, Georgia

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Itis a pleasure to hereby submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Morrow, Georgia, for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairmess
of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed
data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position
and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of the City’s financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is written to be used and understood by a broad array of people. Itis
presented in three sections:

1) INTRODUCTORY SECTION

This introductory section, which is unaudited, includes this letter of transmittal, the City's organizational chart, a listing
of the City's principal officials, and the Government Finance Officers Association’s Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting for Fiscal Year 2008-2009.

2) FINANCIAL SECTION

The financial section includes the general purpose financial statements and schedules, management discussion and
analysis, as well as the independent auditors' report on these financial statements and additional information
pertaining to individual funds and account groups.

3) STATISTICAL SECTION
The statistical section includes pertinent financial and economic data indicating trends, generally presented on a multi-
year basis.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis {MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's report and provides a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A complements this letter of
transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

The data in the report is believed to be accurate in all material respects and conforms substantially with the standards
of the GFOA program for the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. This report will again
be submitted to the GFOA for evaluation of eligibility for the Certificate for the eighteenth consecutive year. All
necessary disclosures have been included in order to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the
City's financial activity.

INDEPENDENT AURIT

Georgia statutes and law require cities to have an audit performed annually by an independent certified public
accountant. The City of Morrow’s financial statements have been audited by Mauldin & Jenkins, Certified Public
Accountants, LLC. The independent auditor conciuded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for
rendering and ungualified opinion that the City’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, are fairly
presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented in the first component of financial
section of this report.



Single Audit
The independent audit of the financial statements of the City is sometimes part of a broader, federal and state

mandated "Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal and state grantor agencies. The standards
governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the
financial statements, but also on the audited government's internal controls and compliance with legal requirements,
with special emphasis on the administration of federal and state awards. For fiscal year 2011, the City spent
$1,761,003 of federal funds on the foliowing programs:

F JUSTICE

Direct Programs:

e COPPS Community Policing Grant 3 143,565

e Public Safety Partnership — Tactical Division Task Force 9,843
Total Department of Justice Programs 153,408
US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Passed Through Atlanta Regional Commission — Livable Centers Initiative — 100,000

Southlake Area

Georgia Department of Transportation

{pass through)

» Jester's Creek Path Project - ARRA 914,281

e Pedestrian Underpass Project - ARRA 504 617
Total Department of Transportation Programs 1,518,898
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Direct Programs:

s 2010 Firefighters Assistance Grant 32,297

e 2009 Firefighters Assistance Grant 56,400
Total Homeland Security Programs 88,697
Total Federal Financial Assistance $ 1,761,003

In accordance with GAAP, this Comprehensive Annual Report (CAFR) includes a narrative introduction from
management, that provides an overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors. The remainder of this letter provides an overview of local economic conditions and some of the
City’s current and future initiatives.

THE PROFILE OF GOVERNMENT

The City of Morrow, incorporated in 1943, is located in Clayton County, GA, approximately 10 miles south of Atlanta’s
Hartsfield International Airport. According to the 2010 Census, the City has a residential population of 6,445 {(an
increase of 32% over the 2000 Census) and Clayton County has a population of 259,424, which contributes to the
70,000 plus visitors who find themselves in the City of Morrow on a daily basis.

Morrow operates under the Council/City Manager form of government. The City of Morrow is empowered to levy a
property tax on both real and personal properties located within its boundaries. It is also empowered by the State to
extend it corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the governing Board.
Policy making and legislative authority are vested in the governing council, which consists of a Mayor and four Council
members. The governing council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting budgets,
appointing committees, and hiring both the City Manager and legal counsel. The City Manager is responsible for
carrying out the day to day operations of government and for appointing the heads of the various departments. The
Council members are elected on a no-partisan basis, and serve staggered four year terms. Elections are held every
two years, with the Mayor and two Council members on one cycle and the other two Council members on the next
cycle.



The City's organization includes six major departments: Administration, £911 Emergency Communication, Fire,
Police, Public Works, and Planning & Economic Development. The City Manager is appointed by the Mayor and
Council to directly supervise these departments. The City provides many services to Morrow's residents and visitors,
including police and fire protection, emergency medical service, emergency communications, code enforcement,
public works, sanitation, and planning economic development services. Each of the service areas function as
departments of the City and therefore are included as an integral part of the City’s financial statements.

The annuat budget serves as the foundation for the City of Morrow's financial planning and control. The annual budget
process begins with Council Planning Sessions in February to discuss plans for the upcoming fiscal year. After the
Council Planning Sessions, all departments of the City of Morrow are required to submit request for appropriations to
the City Manager on or about March 9". The City Manager uses the requests as a starting point for developing a
proposed budget, which is then presented to the City Council by the end of April. The City Council is required to hold
public hearings on the proposed budget and to adopt a final budget no later than June 30, (the close of the City’'s fiscal
year). The annual budget is prepared by fund, function, and depariment: for example: General Fund, Public Safety,
Police Department. Department Directors are not allowed to make transfers between appropriated accounts.
Appropriations between Departments are not allowed, except by specific action of the City Council. Budget io actual
comparisons are provided in this report for each individual fund which an appropriated budget has been adopted. For
general fund, this comparison extends to the department fevel. Budget to actual comparisons for all governmental and
enterprise funds (business-type activities) are presented in the other Required Supplementary Information (RSi)
section of the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the
broader perspective of the specific environment in which the City operates. The City of Morrow's local economy has
primarily been driven by it predominant retail sector. With a major regional retail mall within the city limits, The City
continues to cope with the current financial recession and all current economic predictions point to a very slow
economic recovery. Locally, we are experiencing stagnant retail sales that will keep occupation tax revenues and sales
tax revenues flat, at best. Additionally, we continue to see major retail store closings due to national retailer's weak
balance sheets and changes in their business strategies.

Construction by the Georgia Department of Transportation has started and continues on the $46 million construction
contract for the Highway 54 and Interstate 75 interchange and related bridges. The improvements include expanded
lanes that will reduce traffic delays, a new bridge for Lee Street that will reduce congestion on Highway 54, and high
mast lighting that will improve safety and visibility. Completion of this new interchange is scheduled for late calendar
year 2012, Since the City of Morrow is geographically centered at this interstate interchange, completion of this
construction is expected to make the City of Morrow more appealing and provide potential business growth to the area
with the improved access and fraffic.

The City of Morrow has traditionally produced a conservative budget and this has been extremely beneficial in the
current economic market. We believe Georgia and the City of Morrow are seeing a positive growth in our economies,
albeit very slowly.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

During 2011, the City of Morrow achieved significant accomplishments that will have positive impacts on our city's
continued economic growth and development:

Strategic Stakeholder Relationship Building Efforts
+ Clayton State University

General Growth Properties; Southlake Mall

Clayton County Economic Development

Clayton County Board of Commissioners

Georgia Power Company

State and National Archives
e Clayton Archway Partnership

Infrastructure Developments
» Completion of Phase Il of the Jester's Creek Pedestrian Path System
* Completion of the Lee Street Bridge
» Eighty percent completion of |-75 Interchange construction (Georgia Department of Transportation)
»  Eighty-five percent completion of Pedestrian Underpass

¢ & @ @ @
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Service Enhancements

s Introduction of RecycleBank, residential recycling program

s One-stop shop for permitting to create a friendly process for residents and businesses

o  Annual Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting

e Developed the city's first Business Plan as a model to guide planning at the department level
Planning Initiatives

e ARC: Livable Centers Initiative economic, transportation and market study of the Southlake Mall and

Mixed Use areas

= Completion of market studies for target development areas.
Funding Partnerships

e Department of Natural Resources; Land and Water Conservation Fund: resurface track at Milton Daniel Park
Department of Transportation: Transportation Enhancement Grant: phase Il of Jester's Creek Path System
Local Government Risk Management Services, Inc; Safety Grant: turnout gear and security upgrades
Georgia Department of Transportation; Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant: street paving
HUD; Community Development Block Grant: Playground equipment for Hammack Park.

All of these initiatives align the City of Morrow toward achieving a more vibrant community that will attract new
businesses and residents for future growth. With these growth initiatives, the City can look forward to more balanced
revenue streams coming from its governmental and business-type activities.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Accounting System Internal Controls

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to
ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data
are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding: (1)
the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition; and (2) the reliability of financial records
for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal, state, and county financial assistance, the City is also responsible for ensuring that an
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to
federal assistance programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management of the
City.

Budgetary Controls
In addition to internal controls, the City maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary contrals is to

assure compliance with the legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Morrow City
Council. Activities of the General Fund, Emergency Communications Fund, and General Capital Improvements Fund
all appear in the City's annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary controf (being the level at which
expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established by department within an individual fund.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the City continues to
meet its responsibility for sound financial management,

Pension Benefit Plan

The City contributes to the Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System, an agent/multiple employer public employee
retirement system administered by the Georgia Municipal Association. The City of Morrow Retirement Plan is a
defined benefit plan that provides retirement and disability benefits and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. All full-time City employees and all City officials are eligible to participate in the system. The employee
becomes fully vested after ten years of service. The participation by the City's employees is noncontributory; however,
the city is subject to the minimum funding standards for the Public Retirement Systems Standard Law. The policy set
by the City for contributing the annual pension expenses exceeds the minimum requirements of this law. The Georgia
Municipal Employees Benefit System is actuarially sound with all indications that this will continue.

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. Plan participation is optional to City employees and the City has no fiduciary responsibifity for the plan.



Debt Administration

The City's general obligation bonded debt legal limit was $29,646 606, which is equal to 10% of the Assessed
Valuation of property within the city limits of the City. The City had $6,460,787 of oufstanding long-term debt at June
30, 2011. The long-term debt represents $5,135,000 in revenue bonds issued in 2009 against the City's SPLOST
funds for the construction of the Morrow Conference Center and the balance of a 20-year lease between the City of
Morrow and the Morrow Downtown Development Authority with the proceeds being used for the re-financing of the
Morrow Welcome Center.

Cash Management
The GCity temporarily invests its idie cash in accounts earning competitive yields with a minimum of credit market risk.

These accounts included certificates of deposits, U. S. Treasury issues, certain governmental agency securities, the
State of Georgia’s Local Government Investment Pool (Georgia Fund 1), and numerous interest-bearing bank
accounts. All funds are either insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or collateralized by the issuing
bank's investments.

AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada {GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Morrow, Georgia, for its comprehensive annual
financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national
award, recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial
reports.

In order to be awarded the Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR), whose contents conform to program standards.
The CAFR must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable
legal requirerments.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City has received a Certificate of Achievement
for the last seventeen consecutive fiscal years (1994-2010). We believe our current Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program'’s requirements, and we are submitting this report to
the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This report was produced through the dedication of the City’s Finance department staff with cooperation from all city
departments and our elected officials. | would like to thank the Finance Department staff, the City's department
heads, other staff members, and our independent auditors, Mauldin & Jenkins, Certified Public Accountants, LLC, for
their efforts and cooperation in preparation of these reports. Finally, | would like to thank the Mayor and City Council
for their continued support, vision, guidance, and leadership pertaining to the financial affairs of this city.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Council
Morrow, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-fype activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Morrow, Georgia (the “City”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the City of Morrow, Georgia's management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller Generaf of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides
a reasanable basis for our apinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Morrow,
Georgia, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, as of July 1, 2010.

In accordance with Govemnment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 15, 2011, on our consideration of the City of Morrow, Georgia's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal contral over financial
reporiing and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

300 MULBERRY STREET, SUITE 300 « POST OFFICE BOX 1877 » MACON, GEORGIA 31202-1877 - 478-464-8000 + FAX 478-464-8051 » www.mjcpa.com
MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management's Discussion and Analysis (on pages 3 — 11) and the Schedule of Funding Progress (on page 49) be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Morrow, Georgia’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of special purpose local
option sales tax proceeds is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Official Code of Georgia
48-8-21, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole,

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Morrow, Georgia's basic financial statements. The introductory section and
statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Pl cewbotere # Grlonan, FXEC

Macon, Georgia
December 15, 2011



CITY OF IORROW, GEORGIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Morrow, we offer readers of the City of Morrow's financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Morrow for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. It is
designed to give the reader an objective and easily readable analysis of the City's financial performance. The primary
intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the City’s financial performance as a whole; readers should also
review the letter of transmittal, notes to the basic financial statements, and the financial statements to enhance their
understanding of the City’s financial performance.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for FY 2011 are as follows:

» The assets of the City of Morrow exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $25,109,463 (net
assets).

o The City's total net assets increased $1,586,080, due mostly to activity within the City's SPLOST Fund.

» As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Morrow’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $7,793,339, an increase of $1,357,329 in comparison to the prior year. Approximately 24%
of this total amount, or $1,903,908, is available for spending at the government's discretion (unassigned fund
balance).

= At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance for the General Fund was $7,155,735 or 60% of total
general fund expenditures for the fiscal year.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the fund balance for the SPLOST fund was $601,746, which was
restricted for other capital projects.

o At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance for Other Governmental Funds was $35,858.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This comprehensive annual financial report consists of the City of Morrow's basic financial statements comprised of
three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3} notes fo those
financial statements. The statements are organized so the reader can understand the City of Morrow as a financial
whole, or as an entire operating entity.

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Staternent of Net Assets presents information on all the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reported as “net assets”. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused
vacation leave).

Both of the govemment wide statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (government activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the City has both governmental and business-type
activities:
= Governmental Activities - Most of the City's programs and seivices are reported here including
general government, judicial, public safety, public works, and economic development. Sales taxes,
property taxes, occupation taxes, and fines and forfeitures finance most of these activities.
= Business-Type Activities — The City charges fees io cover the services it provides related to
sanitation services. These activities are reported as business-type activities under proprietary funds.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 13 and 14 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the City’s major funds. A fund is a grouping of related
accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance related legal requirements. All the funds of the City can be divided into two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental! Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. Most of the City's basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds
focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will
be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting, which provides a short-term spending focus. As a result, the governmental fund
financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or
less financial resources available to finance the City's programs. The relationship between government activities
(reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a
reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of Morrow adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The budget
is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the City, the management of the City, and
the decisions of the Board about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the City fo
obiain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for
the General Fund demonstrates how well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City
succeeded in providing the services as pianned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement
uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, language, and classifications as the
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances. The statement shows four columns: 1)
the original budget as adopted by the board,; 2) the final budget as amended by the board; 3) the actual resources,
charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the
final budget and the actual resources and charges.

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for
particular purpeses. The City of Morrow has four Special Revenue Funds: (1) Confiscated Assets Fund, (2)
Hotel/Motel Tax Fund, (3) Excise Tax Fund, and {4} Emergency Communication Fund.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are activities that a City operates similar to a business in that it attempts to recover costs through
charges to the user. The City of Morrow has only one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise Funds are used to report
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City of
Morrow uses two enterprise funds to account for its sanitation activity and conference center activity. Proprietary fund
statements use the accrual basis of accounting similar to the City-wide statements.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 - 22 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 22 —
48 of this report.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial condition. The
assets of the City of Morrow exceeded liabilities by $25,109,463 as of June 30, 2011. The City's net assets increased
by $1,586,080 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The increase in net assets was primarily due to increases in
cash and investment balances. The largest portion of the City’s net assets (69%) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are
still outstanding. Although the City of Morrow’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding
related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets
cannot be used to liquidate these liabifities.

City of Morrow's Net Assets
June 30, 2011

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Current and other assets 5 89524861 % 7,115388 5 259,533 8 190,745 $ 9211994 5 7,306,133

Capital assets, net 18,726,181 18,394,258 4,837,226 4,868,535 23,563,407 23,362,793
Totai assets 27,678,642 25,509,646 5,096,759 5,159,280 32,775,401 30,668,926
Other liabitities 1,004,416 460,211 200,735 173,683 1,205,151 633,894
Long-term liabilities

outstanding 6,460,787 6,511,649 - - 6,460,787 6,511,649
Total liabilities 7,465,203 6,971,860 200,735 173,683 7,665,938 7.145,543
MNet assets:
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 12,553,484 12,155,243 4,837,226 4,968,535 17,390,720 17,123,778
Restricted 657,217 - - - 657,217 -
Unrestricted 7,002,728 6,382,543 58,798 17,062 7,061,526 6,399,605
Total net assets $ 20,213,439 5 18.537,%- $ 4,896,024 $ 4985597 $ 25,108,463 $ 23,523,383

An additional portion of the City’s net assets (2.6%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets ($7,061,526) may be used to meet the
government's ongoing obligaticns to citizens and creditors.

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, increased the City of Morrow's net assets by
$1,675,653. Business-type activities during the same period decreased net assets by $89,573 for a total increase in
net assets of $1,586,080. The key element of this increase is an additional $1,512,494 in operating grants and
contributions. Public safety expenses of $6,741,610 represent 55% of the total governmental expenses. Interest
expense of $250,638 represents 2% of total governmental expenses. Interest expense is attributable fo debt
financed for the Morrow Tourist Center building and the Morrow Conference Center. It is also important to note that
in fiscal year 2010, total governmental expenses included a one-time transfer of $10,982,072 of capital assets to the
Downtown Development Authority of the City of Morrow.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

City of Morrow's Changes in Net Assets
June 30, 2011

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totai
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Revenues:
Pragram revenues
Charges for services 5 5B0325 5 5514780 § 1,177.60B % 1,121,386 6,980,864 & 6,636,166
Operating grants and
contributions 1,721,689 147,717 - - 1,721,689 147,717
Capital grants and
contributions 1,507,511 1,568,089 - - 1,507,511 1,568,988
General revenues;
Property taxes 1,634,577 1,769,748 - - 1,634,577 1,769,748
Sales taxes 1,603,352 1,652,727 - - 1,603,352 1,852,727
Franchise taxes £§90,517 664,498 - - 650,517 664,498
Other taxes 003,873 888,275 - - 903,873 888,275
Miscellaneous 32,911 70,887 - - 32,911 70,887
Unrestricted investment
eamings 1,830 13,558 - - 1,830 13,558
Gain on sale of
capital assets 298 11,337 - - 298 11,337
Total revenues 13,899,814 12,302,516 1,177,608 1,121,386 15,077,422 13,423,502
Expenses:
General government 2,572,899 12,608,230 - - 2,572,889 12,908,230
Judicial 384,023 353,217 - - 384,023 353,217
Public safaty 6,741,610 6,460,751 - - 6,741,610 5,460,751
Public works 1,775,668 1,775,873 - - 1,775,668 1,775,873
Ecenomic development 275,328 161,156 - - 275,328 161,156
Interast on long-term debt 250,639 250,977 - - 250,639 250,977
Sanitation - - 836,005 923,938 836,005 923,938
Morrow Center - - 411,854 168,345 411,954 168,345
Total expenses 12,000,167 21,810,204 1,247 959 1,092,283 13,248,126 23,002,487
Increase {decrease) in
net assets before {ransfers 1,899,647 (9,607,688) (70,351) 29,103 1,829,296 (9,578,585)
Transfers 19,222 (4,956,494) (19,222) 4,556,494 - -
Special item {243,216) - - - {243,218) -
Change in net assets 1,675,653 (14,564,182) (89,573} 4 985,597 1,586,080 (9,578,585}
Net assets, beginning of year 18,537,786 33,101,968 4,985,507 - 23,523,383 33,101,968
Net assets, end of year 5 20456655 § 18,537,786 § 4,896,024 $ 4,985597 25109463 § 23,523,383

Business-Type Activities

The business-type activities of the City consist of the Sanitation Department and the Morrow Conference Center.
The Sanitation Department provides trash collection services to the city residents and businesses. The revenue of

the Sanitation Department is derived from user fees charged for services related to solid waste disposal.

The

Morrow Conference Center was opened and began offering conference space and services during the current fiscal
year. The revenue of the Morrow Conference Center is derived from user fees charged for conference space rental

and other conference center services.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds
As noted earlier, the City of Morrow uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirernents.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City of Morrow’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of Morrow’s financing requirements.
Specifically, unassigned fund balance can be a useful measure of a government's net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year. At June 30, 2011, the total Governmental Funds of the City of Morrow
reported a combined fund balance of $7,793,339, a 21% percent increase from the previous year, primarily due to
SPLOST tax revenues used to reimburse the General Fund during the current fiscal year for interfund
receivables/payables for SPLOST project expenditures in the previous fiscal year. The SPLOST fund balance
increased from a deficit of $897,403 in 2010 to a positive fund balance of $601,746 at June 30, 2011, an increase of
$1,499,149.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City of Morrow. At the end of fiscal year 2011, the fund
balance of the General Fund was $7,155,735. Of this amount, $1,903,908 represents unassigned fund balance,
which is available as working capital for current spending. The majority of general fund balance, $5,232,214, is
termed non-spendable to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it is not in spendable form. This
amount is made up of prepaid expenditures ($182,168), assets held for resale ($1,634,276), and advances to the
Downtown Development Authority ($3,415,770). As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to
compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned governmental
fund balance represents 15% of total governmental funds expenditures, while total fund balance represents 61% of
that same amount. Other Governmental Funds had a positive fund balance of $35,858. These funds include special
revenue funds.

City of Morrow's Governmental Fund Balance
June 30, 2011

2011 2010
General Fund 5 7155735 & 7,402,959
SPLOST Fund 601,746 (897,403)
Other Governmental Funds 35,858 (69,546)

Total Governmental Fund Balance 3 7,793,339 §% 6,436,010




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Proprietary Funds
The City of Morrow’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide

statements but in more detail. Other factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been addressed in the
discussion of the City of Morrow’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
= The City's budget is prepared according to Georgia law. The most significant budgeted fund is the General

Fund.

= For the General Fund, the actual revenues of $11,627,964 were less than the final budget amount of
$12,321,906 by $683,942. The difference was primarily due to intergovernmental revenues anticipated from
granis being less than budgeted.

= The general fund actual expenditures of $11,789,358 were less than the budgeted amount of $11,913,741
by $124,383. The final budget for the year decreased by $1.38 million from the original budget due primarily
to decreased capital budgeted expenditures related to federal grant funded capital projects.

Capital Asset and Debt Adminisfration

Capital Assets
The City of Morrow's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business—type activities as of June 30,

2011, totals $23,563,407 (net of accumulated depreciation), a $200,614 increase from the previous year. This net
increase includes net additions of capital assets of $1,592,771, net disposals of $102,326, and a decrease of
$1,289,831 for 2011 depreciation expenses. These assets include buildings, roads and bridges, land, machinery
and equipment, park facilities, and vehicles. The invesiment in capital assets for business-type activities includes
the Morrow Conference Center.

Capital asset additions during the year include the following additions (there were no significant demolitions or
disposals):

o Jesters Creek Pathway projects ($946,492)

o Pedestrian Underpass Tunnel at Highway 54 and Clayton State Bivd ($482,585)
e Public Safety Equipment ($138,514)

s Street & Sidewalk Construction {$20,498)

e Land for Pathway Project ($6,682)



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

City of Morrow's Capital Assets, net of Accumulated Depreciation
June 30, 2011

Gavernmental Activities Business -type Aclivities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Land 3 4702735 $ 4,696,053 g - $ - B 4702735 % 4,698,053
Buildings, grounds
and improvements 2,409,205 2,553,996 4,810,595 4,935,546 7,218,800 7,489,542
Machinery and equipment 320,082 467,483 7,439 8,314 327,521 475777
Furniture & fixtures 13,737 22,896 19,192 24,675 32,929 47,571
Infrastructure in process 1,891,200 462,123 - - 1,891,200 462,123
Infrastructure 8,410,675 9,060,801 - - 8,410,675 9,060,801
Vehicles 346,043 401,880 - - 346,043 401,880
Computer Software 25,627 63,498 - - 25,627 63,448
Park Facilities 606,877 665,548 - - 606,877 665,548
Total $§ 18,726,181 $ 18,394,258 § 4,837,226 $ 4,968,535 $ 23,563,407 $ 23,362,793

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 5 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Long-term Debt

As of June 30, 2011, the City of Morrow had total outstanding debt of $6,793,787 comprised of $5,135,000 in bonds
payable, $1,037,687 related to capital leases on the Morrow Tourist Center building and $288,100 in compensated
absences balances. At June 30, 2011, the City of Morrow also had short term balances payable on a line of credit
of $333,000, to be paid off before the end of calendar year 2012.

City of Morrow's Qutstanding Long-Term Liabilities
June 30, 2011

Gavernmental Activities Business -type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Capital leases % 1,037,687 g 1,104,015 5 - 5 - B 1,037,687 3 1,104,015
Bonds payable 5,135,000 5,135,000 - - 5,135,000 5,135,000
Compensated absences 288,160 272,634 - - 288,100 272,634
Total 8 6460787 & 6,511,649 8 - 8 - 3 6,460,787 5 6,511,649

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 8 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Currently Known Conditions Affecting the Future Operations

The downtown in the economy continues to erode tax revenues from most sources. The significant decrease
realized on real estate values, especially in Clayton County, over the past coupie of years continues to challenge our
future economic growth.

Factors Affecting the FY2011-12 Budget

The City Councit of City of Morrow considered many factors when approving the City's 2012 budget and are very
aware of present economic conditions, forecasts for a very slow recovery, and the effects on its citizens and the
levels of service provided by the City. The City Council increased property taxes from a rate of 6 mils to 7.5 mils.

Annually the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the coming fiscal year which
is required to be approved by June 30. Public hearings are held prior to adoption to allow citizens the opportunity to
comment on the proposed budget.

Budgets are adopted for the General Fund, the Hotel/Mote! Tax Fund, the Confiscated Assets Fund, the Rental Car
Excise Fund, the E911 Communications Fund, the SPLOST Fund, the Sanitation Fund, and The Morrow Center
Fund. Budgets for the Enterprise funds are prepared for planning and control purposes only. The legal level of
budgetary control is the department level, with the City Council being the only body authorized to make amendments
to the budget. During the year there was an approximate $1.4 million decrease in budget appropriations between the
original budget and the final amended budget for the City's General Fund. This decrease was due primarily to
reduced appropriations in the public works department capital budget for federal grant funded capital projects that,
when put out to bid, came in significantly lower than projected in the original budget.

Contacting the City’s Financial Management

This report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with an interest in the City's
finances. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information
should be directed to the Director of Finance, City of Morrow, 1500 Morrow Rd, Morrow, Georgia 30260, 770-961-
4002 or via email at ddefnall@cityofmarrow.com.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011

Primary Government Component Units
Morrow
Total Downtown Business Morrow
Governmental Business-type Primary Development and Tourism Housing
ASSETS Activities Activities Government Authority Association Authority
Cash and cash equivalents S 1,900,442 S 169,452 & 2,069,884 S 65,085 & 4,240 S 160
Investments 727,541 - 727,541 - - -
Taxes receivable 167,259 - 167,259 - - .
Accounts receivable 16,358 81,807 98,165 1,078,623 2,016 -
Due fruom component unit 3,464,786 - 3,464,786 - - -
Due from other governments 784,770 - 784,770 - - -
Inventory - 8,274 B,274 - - -
Prepaid expenses 182,168 - 182,168 - 1,234 -
Other noncurrent asset 74,861 - 74,861 117,224
Assets held for resale 1,634,276 - 1,634,276 - - 75,000
Capital assets:
Nondepretiable 6,603,935 - 6,593,935 7,373,204 - "
Depreciable, net of accumulated
depreciation 12,132,245 4,837,226 16,868,472 14,873,808 - -
Total assets 27,678,642 5,086,759 32,775,401 23,207,925 7,490 75,160
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 391,037 87,523 478,560 11,818 9,424 -
Accrued liabilities 280,379 1,203 281,582 29,342 7,383 -
Unearned revenues - 93,781 93,781 - - -
Note payable 333,000 - 333,000 - - -
Customer deposits payable - 18,228 18,228 - - -
Due to primary government - - - 3,418,770 49,016 -
Capital leases due within one year 68,926 . 68,926 - - -
Capital leases due in more than one year 068,741 - 068,76 - - -
Neies payable due within one year - - - 61,579 - -
Noies payable due in more than cne year - - - 1,140,748 - -
Bonds payable due within one year 1,220,000 - 1,220,000 448,925 - -
Bonds payable due ir more than one year 3,815,000 . 3,915,000 8,202,775 - -
Compensated absences due within one year 240,300 - 240,300 - - -
Compensated absences due in more
than one year 47,800 - 47,800 - - -
Total liahilities 7,465,203 200,735 7,665,938 14,311,058 65,823 -
NET ASSETS {DEFICIT)
[nvested in capital assets, net of related debt 12,553,494 4,837,226 17,390,720 11,092,985 - -
Restricted for law enforcement 55,471 - 55,471 - - -
Restricted for other capital projecis 601,748 - 601,746 - - -
Unrestricted {deficit) 7,002,728 58,788 7,061,526 {2,196,118) (58,333) 75,160
Total net assets {deficit) § 20,213,438 3 4,896,024 5 25108,463 5 8,898,867 5 (58,333) & 75,160

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

12



€l

'SUDLAELS [RIUTBUY asay) Jo Hed (esbau ue ake sajou BujAueduroooe auy,

ool's, ¢ (EEE'BG) § /S@'9GB'B  § EOF'6OL'GE 4  pen'oss’y $ GEYELE'OC g 1e2A 10 pua ‘(J1ouap) S19SSE JaN
109 (E6F'0Y) EBB'RIES £RE'EZE'EE 165'GRE'Y aRlee'al 134 Jo BuiuuiBag '(yoysp) sjasse jaN
655'tL (oba'2i) (gz1'z8%) 0BO'9SS'L {£L5'68) £59'549'} sj@sse jau ut aBueayy
- grl'Lie [EENTS Zr)'pze'y {zee's)) ¥oE'era'y S194sUBl] puE ‘sway [20ads ‘sanuasdl [2iauab oL
- - - - {Zee'sl) ZzzZ'BL slajsuel)
- - - (s1z'ep) - (g1e'ere) wa); [eoads
- - - 852 - 862 SJBSSE |2j1deD Jo ajes uo ues
- LE 889ty oen'l - oeg't sBuiuiea JuaLiSaAUl pajaUsalLn
- - - 115'068 - 216'069 SAXE] ISR
b - - L16'ZE - L1B'EE SNoaUE||BosiY
- 2EL°)LLZ - zTOS'SLG - 20G'GLS saxe] Jaylo
- - - [ A - #o5'sg L saxe} afielanag noyoory
" - - 108°282 - LoB'gse Xe} winjwaud asueinsu|
- - - Z4e'e09'L - ZG5E'E09'} SOXE) STIEG
- - - 1/5'9E9') - L45'PET'L saxe) Auadoid
‘SanuUDAz] |Blauzg)
655'pL (geg'BBE) {r1a'ezg) - - - - $  JELOLY 3 125'88¢ $ 151'8el’L g spun jusuodwoo [gjoL
6G5'L - - - - - - 000°28 - N2 AjQusny BUISNOH MoLIOWN
- (9r5°6a2) - - - - - §5¢'0 82.'8 #24'v0E UOIBICOSSY WSUNG | PUR SSSULISNE MCLOA
- - (r18'c2s) - - - - $  6TTIS $  tbR'elE % ops'szy'l 5 Ajuoyiny juawdajsasg umoimog
rspun juaucdwon
- - - (za0'sE0'E) (LGE'DL} (112'2968') LIG 206"t S BBYLEL) $ $BB'08E'D  § OZL'srEEl g jusisuiasob Arewnd |Ejo)
- - - (Lge'DY) (= - - - 809°24L°L BGB'LrT L sajanae sdi}-sssuisng |gjoL
- - - (242202 (££1°202) - - - 221’802 YGE' LY lala]) Mmoo
- - - 8zZh'Zet =T - - - LEF'BOB 500'gE8 uoneluesy
saipARoe adAl-ssauisng
- - - (112'296°2) - (+12'206') LIS 206"L 689°12."L 952'208'S £91'000'g L S3IAIOR jBjUBLILBAOB [Rj0)
- - - (6e0'052) - (seg'0s2) - - - BEG'0SE 199p wial-Buo| uo s3Iyl
- - - (g2e'522) - (mze'sse) - - - 82E'GLE juawdojaaap DiWoLo0g
- - - (251'802) - (£5)'89z} 116206 - - 899'G24°L SYI0M Dlgag
- - - (gg5'5ze) - (5s5'sE8) - 689'LEL'} o0E'PEE'Y 0lg'LvLg fages oqng
- - - (ego'vec) - (e20'vae) - - - £Z0'PEE |e1pnr
- g - g - 3 (B0O0'POV's) g - 4 (600'vapF'L) g - g - % 0EB'BCL'L S5 EBB'ZLGE ] juslic1anob (z18Uag)
(SEJAIDE [BjUS\LLIBAGD)
ustiuieach Aewinid
Moy LOReID0SSY Auoyiny 1ejo01 IHAIDY SHUANIY SUO[NQEIuon sUORNGUIUCYH EERITVEDS soasuanxg 51UBIBOI §fELGTSung
Buisnoy  wsunojy pug  juswdojeasg adfy-ssauisng {EIHDWILLIBACD) pue sjuels PuE S)URID loj sefileysn
MOLIORY ssaulsng UMDIUMO epden Bunedado
MOLIOY

s35uf] uauodiugy JUBLLLIA0D ey

51355y JaN U) sabueyn
pue sanuanay (sasuadx3) jJaN

sanuaAay welbold

LLOZ "0 INNM JIANT HY3A TvOSI4 IHL HOd
SALLIALLIY JO IN3JW3LYILS

YIO"HO03O ‘MOUHON 40 ALID



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

Qther Totals
SPLOST Governmental Governmental
ASSETS General Fund Funds Funds
Cash and cash equivalents 5 1490136 % 348052 § 62,254  § 1,900,442
Investments 727 541 - m 727,541
Taxes receivable 116,609 - 50,650 167,258
Accounts receivable 506 - 15,852 16,358
Advance to component unit 3415770 - - 3415770
Due from component unit 48,016 - - 48,016
Due from other governments 531,076 253,694 - 784,770
Due from other funds 81,311 - - 81,311
Prepaid expenditures 182,168 - - 182,168
Assets held for resale 1,634,276 - - 1,634,276
Total assets 3 8,228,409 5 601,746 5 128,756 3 8,958,911
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable S 384,278 5 - $ 8,759 $ 391,037
Accrued liabilities 236,095 - 4,828 240,923
Deferred revenues 118,301 - - 118,301
Note payable 333,000 - - 333,000
Due to other funds - - 81,311 81,311
Total liabilities 1,072,674 - 92,898 1,165,572
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendahle;
Prepaid expenditures 182,168 - - 182,168
Advances 3415770 - - 3,415,770
Assets held for resale 1,634,276 - - 1,634,276
Restricted for:
L.aw enforcement 19,613 - 35,858 55,471
Other capital projects - 601,746 - 601,746
Unassigned: 1,903,908 - - 1,903,808
Tatal fund balances 7,155,735 601,746 35,858 7,793,339
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 8,228,409 5 801,746 3 128,756
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 18,726,181
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 119,301
Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and are therefore not reported in the funds. (6,425,382}
Net assets of governmental activities 3 20,213,439

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

14



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues

Property taxes
QOther taxes
Charges for services
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Franchise fees
Fines and forfeitures
Interest revenue
Rental income
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Econemic development
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principat
Interest
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiensy) of revenues over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Total other financing sources (uses)
Special item
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances {deficit), beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Other Totals
SPLOST Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
1,628,148 3 - § - 3 1,629,148
1,991,722 - 554,663 2,546,385
807,430 - 154,887 862,317
1,093,682 - - 1,093,682
2,168,553 1,508,523 - 3,677,076
890,517 - - 690,517
3,212,233 - 88,160 3,300,303
1,768 753 62 2,583
16,879 - - 16,879
16,032 - - 16,032
11,627,964 1,500,276 797772 13,935,012
2,483,815 - - 2,483,815
383,501 - - 383,501
6,194,083 - 385,092 8,579,175
2,439,957 - - 2,439,957
- - 271,736 271,736
- 10,127 - 10,127
65,328 - - 66,328
221,674 - - 221,674
11,788,358 10,127 656,828 12,456,313
{161,394) 1,499,149 140,844 1,478,698
415,353 - 154 887 570,240
(268,081) - {282,927) (551,018)
10,124 - 92,500 102,624
157,386 - (35,540) 121,846
(243,216} - - (243,216)
(247,224} 1,489,149 105,404 1,357,329
7,402,959 (887,403) (69,546) 6,436,010
7,155,735 3 601,746 5 35,858 3 7,793,338

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are differant because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 5 1,357,329

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 434,249

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales, irade-ins, donations) is to
decrease net assets (102,326)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues
in the funds. (35,496)

The issuance of lang-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt cansumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net assets. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-
term debt and related items. 36,883

Some expenses repored in the statement of activities do not regquire the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expanditures in governmental funds. (14,988)

5 1,675,653

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts with Final
Qriginal Final Actual Budget
Revenues:
Property taxes b 1,766,400 $ 1,766,400 $ 1,629,148 (137,252)
Other taxes 2.087,000 2,087,000 1,891,722 (85,278)
Charges for services 1,085,250 1,085,250 807,430 (277,820)
Licenses and permits 1,014,936 1,014,936 1,093,682 78,746
Intergovernmental 4,183,620 2,880,620 2,168,553 (712,067)
Franchise fees 662,000 662,000 690,517 28,517
Fines and forfeitures 2,889,500 2,789,500 3,212,233 422,733
Interest revenue 20,000 20,000 1,768 (18,232)
Rental income 15,000 15,000 16,878 1,879
Other revenues 1,200 1,200 16,032 14,832
Tofal revenues 13,724,506 12,321,906 11,627,964 (653,942}
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Mayor / Commission 217,778 217,778 213,087 4,691
General administration 635,370 1,266,370 1,341,407 (75,037)
Finance 353,431 382,431 381,018 1,415
Econamic development 436,993 561,093 541,623 20,370
Capital outlay 125,000 - 6,682 (6,682)
Total general government 1,768,572 2,428,672 2,483,815 (55,243)
Judicial:
Municipal court 474 450 474,450 383,501 90,948
Public safety:
Police 3,006,230 3,200,230 3,188,212 12,018
Fire 2,958,650 2,878,650 2,868,357 9,293
Capital outlay 123,824 136,824 136,514 310
Total public safety 6,178,704 6,215,704 6,194,083 21,621
Public works:
Administration 1,022,389 1,022,389 1,000,510 21,879
Capital ouilay 3,568,000 1,483,000 1,439,447 43,553
Total public warks 4,590,389 2,505,388 2,439,957 65,432
Debt service 284 626 289,626 288,002 1,624
Total expenditures 13,296,741 11,913,741 11,789,358 124,383
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 428,165 408,165 (161,354) (569,559}

{Continued)
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance

Budgeted Amounts with Final

Original Final Actual Budget

Qther financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 3 383548 & 383,548 & 415,353 $ 31,805
Transfers out (334,051) (314,051) {268,091) 45 960
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets - - 10,124 10,124
Total other financing sources {uses) 49,497 68,487 157,386 87,889
Special item - - (243,216) (243,216)
Net change in fund balances 477,662 477,662 (247,224) (724,886)
Fund balances, beginning of year 7,402,959 7,402,959 7,402,958 -
Fund balances, end of year 5 7,880,621 $ 7,880,621 § 7,155,735 & (724,886)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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CITY OF MIORROW, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2011

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalenis
Inventory
Accounts receivable
Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets - depreciable, net
Tetal nancurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Customer deposits payable
Deferred revenues
Total current liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Sanitation Morrow Center
Fund Fund Totals
3 55,302 3 114,060 3 169,452
- 8,274 8,274
74,281 7,526 81,807
128,673 129,860 259,533
- 4,837,226 4,837 226
- 4,837,226 4,837,226
129,673 4,967,086 5,096,759
75,768 11,755 87,523
- 1,203 1,203
- 18,228 18,228
53,905 38,876 93,781
129,673 71,062 200,735
- 4,837,226 4,837,226
- 58,798 58,798
$ - 3 4,896,024 3 4,806,024

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Sanitation Morrow Center
Fund Fund Totals
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 3 968,431 3 208,177 % 1,177,608
Total operating revenues 968,431 208,177 1,177,608
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services - 89,891 89,891
Purchased or contracted services 836,005 180,754 1,026,758
Depreciation - 131,309 131,309
Total operating expenses 836,005 411,954 1,247,958
Operating income {loss} 132,426 (202,777) (70,351)
TRANSFERS
Transfers in - 113,204 113,204
Transfers out (132,426} - (132,426)
Total transfers (132,426} 113,204 {19,222)
Change in net assets - (89,573) {89,573)
NET ASSETS, beginning of year - 4,985,597 4,985,697
NET ASSETS, end of year 5 - 3 4,896,024 5 4 896,024

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Sanitation Morrow Center
Fund Fund Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users 5 g77,037 3 211,222 1,188,259
Payments to suppliers (841,828) (156,104) (997,832)
Payments to employses - (88,688) (88,688}
Net cash provided by (used in} cperating activities 135,209 (33,570} 101,639
CASH FLOWS FROM MONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers {132,426) 113,204 {19,222)
Net cash provided by (used in} noncapital financing activities (132,426} 113,204 (19,222)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,783 79,634 82,417
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 52,608 34 425 87,035
End of year B 55,392 3 114,060 169,452
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used in} operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 132,426 3 (202,777) (70,3581)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) aperating activities:
Depreciation - 131,309 131,308
Changes in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) decrease in accounts receivable B.606 (7,528) 1,080
Becrease in due from other funds - 9,571 8,571
Becrease in inventory - 2,978 2,978
tncrease (decrease) in accounts payable (7,384) 5611 (1,783)
Increase in accrued liabilities 1,571 1,203 2,774
Increase in deferred liabilities - 30,305 30,305
Increase in customer deposits - 11,603 11,603
Decrease in due to component unit - {15,847) (15,847}
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3 135,200 B (33,570} 101,639

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Morrow, Georgia (the “City") have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. With respect to proprietary activities, the City has adopted GASB Statement No. 20,
"Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that use
Proprietary Fund Accounting”. The City has elected to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements
as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting
Principles Board (APB) Opinions, issued on or hefore November 30, 1989, unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The more significant of the
City's accounting policies are described below.

A. The Financial Reporting Entity

The City was incorporated in 1943 and operates under an elected Council-Manager form of
government. The City Manager is the head of the administrative branch of government. As such,
he is responsible for the day-to-day operations of city government. The legislative branch of the City
is vested in the Mayor and four (4) Council members with an appointed City Manager. The City
provides the following services and operations as authorized by its charter. public safety (police and
fire), highways and streets; sanitation; parks and recreation; community development; planning and
zoning; and general administrative services. As required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, these financial statements present the City and its
component units, legally-separate entities for which the City is financially accountable.

Based upon criteria set forth by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14
and as amended by GASB Statement 39, the City was determined to have the following component
units as of June 30, 2011.

Morrow Business and Tourism Association. The Morrow Business and Tourism Association,
Inc. (MBTA) is a vital economic partner for the City of Morrow. Tourism contracts between the
MBTA and the City provide economies of scale, resource efficiencies, and employee benefit
packages that neither party would be able to achieve on their own. The City provides for a
substantial portion of the MBTA's budget and appoints a voting majority of the MBTA’s Board. The
MBTA is presented as a discretely presented component unit.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
A. The Financial Reporting Entity(Continued)

City of Morrow Downfown Development Authority. The City of Morrow Downtown Development
Authority (DDA) was formed during the year ended June 30, 2004, to become the City's
redevelopment tool for commercial revitalization. Property acquisition, renovation, and demolition
are only a few priarities of the DDA. The City provides a substantial portion of the DDA’s budget and
appoints a voting majority of the DDA's Board. The DDA is presented as a discretely presented
component unit.

City of Morrow Housing Authority. The City of Morrow Housing Authority (Authority) was formed
during the year ended June 30, 2009, to provide affordable housing to the citizens of Morrow. The
City provides a substantial portion of the Authority’s budget and appoints a voting majority of the
Authority’s Board. The Housing Authority is presented as a discretely presented component unit.

These three component units are reported in separate columns in the City's government-wide
financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City. They are presented
as component units because the City appoints the voting majority of the Boards and is financially
accountable for them. Separate financial statements for these component units are not available.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities} report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues,
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a
given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, and proprietary funds. Major

individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met,

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual hasis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be avaifable when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is
due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and investment income associated with the
current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available only when cash is received by the City.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax Fund (SPLOST) is used to account for the
revenues and expenditures relating to the 2008 1% Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Sanitation Fund accounts for the operations of commercial and residential waste remaoval
within the City. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund.

The Morrow Center Fund accounts for the operations of the Morrow Conference Center. Al
activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation
(Continued)

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditure
for specific purposes.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of fellowing subsequent private-
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the governmeni-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other
charges between the City’s sanitation function and various other functions of the City. Elimination of
these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services provided. The
City also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of
connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the
cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

E.

Budget requests are completed in April.

Proposed budgets are reviewed and prepared by the City Manager for submission to the
Mayer and the City Commission in May.

Public hearings on the proposed budget are held in May and June.
The budget is legally adopted by the Mayor and City Commission prior to June 30.

All budget revisions or changes must be approved as required by Georgia law and
administrative policy. Transfer of budgeted amounts in excess of $5,000 between
departments requires the approval of the City Council. This is consistent with the legal level
of budgetary control as the budget is adopted at the department level. Revisions that alter
the total expenditures of any department or fund must be approved by the City Council. The
City Council made several immaterial supplemental budget appropriations during the year.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year
for all the governmental funds and the enterprise fund. Budgets for the enterprise funds are

prepared for planning and control purposes only.

Budgets for the governmental funds and the enterprise funds are adopted on a basis
consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liguid investments that are both readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk
of changes in value because of changes in interest rates. Generally, only investments with original
maturities of three months or less meet this definition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
F. Deposits and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments
{including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents.

State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Government and agencies of
corporations of the U.S. Government; obligations of any state; obligations of any political subdivision
of any state; certificates of deposit or time deposits of any natiocnal state bank or savings and loan
which have deposits insured by the FDIC or FSLIC; prime bankers’' acceptances; repurchase
agreements; and the Local Government Investment Pool of the State of Georgia (“Georgia Fund 17).
Georgia Fund 1 was created under OCGA 36-83-8 and operates in a manner consistent with Rule
2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940 and is considered to be a 2a-7 like pool. The pool is
not registered with the SEC as an investment company. The pool's primary objectives are safety of
capital, investment income, liquidity and diversification while maintaining principal {31 per share
value). Net asset value is calculated weekly to ensure stability. The pool distributes earnings (net of
management fees) on a monthly basis and determines participants’ shares sold and redeemed
based on $1 per share. The fair value of the City's position in the pocl is the same as the value of
pool shares ($1 per share value). The pool is regulated by the Georgia Office of Treasury and Fiscal
Services.

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which
approximates fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the
last reported sales price at current exchange rates. Morigages are valued on the basis of future
principal and interest payments, and are discounted at prevailing interest rates for similar
instruments. The fair value of real estate investments is based on independent appraisals.
Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair values.

G. Prepaid ltems
Prepaid items are accounted for using the consumption methed. A prepaid item is recognized when

a cash expenditure/expense is made for goods or services that were purchased for consumption,
but not consumed as of June 30.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
H. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed
from the government-wide statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide statement of net
assets as “internal balances.” In the major fund balance sheets, these receivables and payable are
classified as “due from other funds” and "due to other funds".

l. Grants from Other Governments

Federal and state governmental units represent an important source of supplementary funding used
to finance housing, business development employment, construction programs, capital asset
additions and other activities beneficial to the community. This funding, primarily in the form of
grants, is recorded in both governmental and proprietary funds. Grant contributions in the
proprietary funds, which are for the purpose of construction activities, or land easement or capital
asset acquisitions, are recorded as capital contributions within the statement of revenues and
expenses. For all funds, a grant receivable is recorded when the City has a right to receive the
related grant amounts.

J. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and simitar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one
year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation. In accordance with GASB 34, the City has elected not to include infrastructure acquired or
constructed prior to July 1, 2003.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend useful lives are expensed as incurred,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
J. Capital Assets (Continued)

Major outlays for capital assets and major improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction period of capital assets of the business-type aclivities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The amount of interest
capitalized is calculated by offsetting inferest expense incurred (from the date of borrowing until the
date of completion of the project) with interest earned on investment proceeds over the same period.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, there was no capitalized interest.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings, grounds, and improvements 15-40 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Infrastructure 15 years
Vehicles 5-10 years
Computer software 5 years
Park facilities and improvements 15 years

K. Long-Term Liabilities

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net
assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs and deferred charges, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight line method, which is not
materially different than the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounits,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reporied as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
L. Compensated Absences

City employees accrue vacation in different amounts, according to the number of years of service.
Employees under 10 years of service accrue two weeks of vacation each year. Upon reaching 10
years of service, employees can accrue three weeks per year. These days can be taken either
through time off or by payment upon termination. The third week accrued for employees over 10
years of service can also be paid out as additional compensation while still employed.

Employees earn sick leave in proportion to actual hours worked. Sick leave, however, is not paid
upon termination if termination is by manner other than death or retirement. One-half of the excess
accrued hours over 60 days at the end of the year are paid out to employees. All vacation pay is
accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability
for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a
result of employee resignations or retirements.

M. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve the portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General Fund and Capital Projects
Funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances since
they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of
the year. Encumbrances are re-appropriated in the following year, except for encumbrances in the
Capital Projects Funds which are coniinuing. Encumbrances do not represent GAAP expenditures.
At June 30, 2011, there were no encumbrances outstanding.

N. Fund Equity

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund
Type Definitions, as of July 1, 2010. This new standard changed the overall definitions and
classifications of governmental fund balances.

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as "“fund balance.” Fund
equity for all other reporting is classified as "net assets.”

Fund Balance - Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the assets and liabilities
under the current financial resources measurement focus of accounting. In the fund financial
statements, governmental funds report fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based
primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to henor constraints on the specific purposes for
which amounts in those funds can be spent. Fund balances are classified as follows:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

N.

Fund Equity {Continued)

¢ Nonspendable — Fund balances are reported as nonspendable when amounts cannot be
spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form (i.e., items that are not expected to be
converted to cash) or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

* Restricted — Fund balances are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed
on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

o Committed — Fund balances are reported as committed when they can be used only for
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council through
the adoption of a resolution. Only the City Council may modify or rescind the commitment.

» Assigned -~ Fund balances are reported as assigned when amounts are constrained by the
City's intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Through
resolution, the City Council has authorized the City’s Finance Director or the City Manager to
assign fund balances.

= Unassigned — Fund balances are reported as unassigned as the residual amount when the
balances do not meet any of the above criterion. The City reports positive unassigned fund
balance only in the general fund. Negative unassigned fund balances may be reporied in all
funds.

Flow Assumptions — When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balance are available
for use for expenditures incurred, it is the City’s policy to use restricted amounts first and then
unrestricted amounts as they are needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is the City's
policy to use fund balance in the following order: 1) committed, 2) assigned, and 3) unassigned.

Net Assets — Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in reporting which
utiizes the economic resources measurement focus. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowing used (i.e., the amount that the City has spent) for the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted using the same
definition as used for restricted fund balance as described in the section above. All other net assets
are reported as unrestricted.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

NOTE 2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Q. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

P. Special ltem

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the City contributed certain property held for resale within the
City's General Fund at a value of $326,256 to the City of Morrow Housing Authority. At the time of
the contribution, the appraised value of the property had decreased to $75,000 due to the overall
decline in the housing market. As a resuit of this contribution, the City recorded a $243,216 special
item for the loss on the contributed property. This amount includes certain additional closing costs
and professional fees.

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences hetween the governmentzl fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — tofal
governmental funds and net assels — governmental activities as reported in the government-
wide statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that “certain liabilities
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds." The
details of this $6,425,382 difference are as follows:;

Capital leases 3 1,037,687
Bonds payable 5,135,000
Less: Deferred charge for issuance costs (to be amortized over
life of debt) {74,861)
Compensated absences 288,100
Accrued interast 39,456
Net adjustment o reduce fund balance - total governmental funds
to arrive at net assefs - governmental activilies $ 6,425,382
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide sfatement of
activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and
changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement
of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital
outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is
allocated over their useful lives and reporied as depreciation expense.” The details of this
$434,249 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay 3 1,592,771
Depreciation expense (1,158,522)
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - fotal

governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of

governmental activities % 434,249

Another element of the reconciliation states that “The net effect of various miscellaneous
transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net
assets.” The details of this $102,326 difference are as follows:

In the statement of activities, only the gain an the sale of capital assets
is reported. However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from
the sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change in net assets
differs from the change in fund balance by the net book value of the
capital assets sold or donated to other entities. 5 {102,326)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - iotal
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets - governmental
activities $ (102,326)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide
statement of activities (Continued}

Another element of that reconciliation explains that "The issuance of long-term debt provides
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial rescurces of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net assets.” The details of this $36,883 difference are as foliows:

Principal retirement of long-term debt $ 66,328
Amortization of bond issuance cost (29.445)
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - total

governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of

governmental activities % 36,883

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “Some expenses reported in the statement
of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds.” The details of this $14,986 difference are as follows:

Change in accrued interest b 480
Change in compensated absences {15,466)
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - total

governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assels of

governmental aclivifies $ (14,986)

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Total deposits and investments as of June 30, 2011, are summarized as follows:

Amounts as presented on the entity wide Statement of Net Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 3 2,069,894
Investments 727,541
Compenent Units - cash and cash equivalents 69,465
Total $ 2,866,900

Cash deposited with financial institutions $ 2,139,359
Cash deposited with Georgia Fund 1 727,541
Total 3 2,866,900
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Credit risk. State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the State of Georgia or other
states; obligations issued by the U.S. government; obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the
U.S. government or by a government agency of the United States; obligations of any corporation of
the U.5. governmeni, prime bankers' acceptances; the local government investment pool
established by state law; repurchase agreements; and obligations of other political subdivisions of
the State of Georgia. It is the City's policy to limit its investments to those allowed and authorized by
State law. As of June 30, 2011, the City’s investment in Georgia Fund 1 was rated AAAm by
Standard & Poor's.

At June 30, 2011, the City had the following investments:

Investment Maturities Fair Value

Georgia Fund 1 59 day weighted average 3 727,541

Georgia Fund 1, created by OCGA 36-83-8, is a stable net asset value investment pool which
foliows Standard & Poor’s criteria for AAAm rated money market funds. However, Georgia Fund 1
operates in @ manner consistent with Rule 2a-7 of the investment Company Act of 1840 and is
considered fo be a 2a-7 like pool. The pool is not registered with the SEC as an investment
company. the pool's primary objectives are safety of capital, investment income, liquidity and
diversification while maintaining principal ($1.00 per share value). Net asset value is calculated
weekly to ensure stability.

The pool distributes earnings (net of management fees) on a monthly basis and determines
participants' shares sold and redeemed based on $1.00 per share

Interest rate risk. The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates.

Custodial credit risk — deposits. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of
the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or
will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. As of
June 30, 2011, all of the City’s bank balances were covered by either federal depository insurance or
by coliateral held by the City’s agent in the City's name.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments. Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the
event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of iis
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an ouiside party. State statutes
require all investments (other than federal or state government instruments) to be collateralized by
depository insurance, obligations of the U.S. government, or bonds of public authorities, counties, or
municipalities.

NOTE 4. RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year-end, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as

follows:
Nonmajor Morrow
General SPLOST Governmental Sanitation Center Total

Receivables;

Taxes % 130,178 % - % 91,854 3 - 3 - 5 222,032

Accounts 506 - 15,852 74,281 7,526 98,165

Due from

other governmeants 531,075 253,604 - - - 784,769

Gross receivables 661,759 253,694 107,706 74,281 7.526 1,104,966
Less: allowance (13,568} - {41,204) - - (64,772)
Total receivables $ 648,191 $ 253604 5 66,502 $ 74,281 $ 7,526 $ 1,050,194

Property Taxes

Property taxes were levied on August 2, 2010, (Levy Date) based upon property values assessed as
of January 1. The billings were mailed on October 10, 2010, and payable on or before December
14, 2010, for the fiscal year 2011 tax. Taxes not paid within 30 days of the December 14th due date
are subject to property tax liens on January 14, 2011. Property tax revenues are recognized when
levied to the extent they result in current receivables.

The tax rate levied during fiscal year 2011 for the City's operations was 8 mills (mill eguals $1 per
thousand dollars of assessed value).

The City considers property taxes receivable at June 30, 2011, to be fully collectible and does not
maintain an allowance for uncollectible property taxes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS
A. Primary Government

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 3 4,696,053 3 6,682 3 - 5 4,702,735
Infrastructure in process 462,123 1,429,077 - 1,891,200
Total capital assets, not

being depreciated 5,158,176 1,435759 - 6,593,935
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings, grounds, and improvements 4,373,384 - - 4,373,384
Machinery and equipment 895,702 - (105,624) 790,078
Fumiture and fixtures 230,876 - - 230,876
Infrastructure 10,049,127 20,498 - 10,069,625
Vehicles 2,810,686 136,514 (224,286) 2,722,914
Computer software 432,907 - - 432,907
Park facilities and improvements 890,058 - - 890,058
Total capital assets,

being depreciated 19,682,740 157,012 {(329,810) 19,509,842
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings, grounds, and improvements (1,819,388) (144,791) - (1,964,179)
Machinery and equipment {428,239) (75,683) 33,926 (469,996)
Furniture and fixtures {207,980) (9,159) - (217,139)
Infrastructure {988,326) (670,624) - {1,658,950)
Vehicles (2,408,806) {161,723) 193,658 {2,376,871)
Camputer software {369,409) (37.871) - {407,280)
Park facilities and improvements {224,510} (58,671) - (283,181)
Total accumulated depreciation (6,446,658} (1,158,522} 227,584 {7,377 ,596)
Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net 13,236,082 1,001,510} (102,326) 12,132,246
Governmental activities capital

assets, net 8 18,394,258 i} 434,249 3 (102,326) 3 18,726,181

37



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5.

CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

A. Primary Government (Continued)

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings, grounds, and improvements 3 4,998,021 3 - $ - 5 4,998,021
Machinery and equipment 8,752 - - 8,752
Furniture and fixtures 27,417 - - 27 417
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 5,034,190 - - 5,034,190
l.ess accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings, grounds, and improvements (62,475) (124,951) - (187 ,426)
Machinery and equipment (438B) {875) - {1,313)
Furniture and fixtures (2,742) {5,483) - (8,225}
Total accumulated depreciation (65,655) {131,309) - (156,964}
Business-type activities capital
assets, net $ 4,968,535 $ (131,309) 3 - $ 4,837,226

B. Primary Government (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government 3 100,831
Public safety 276,031
Public works 780,659
Economic development 1,001
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 1,158,522
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

C. Discretely Presented Component Unit — Downtown Development Authority

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 5 7,373,204 S - 3 - 3 7,373,204
Total capital assets, not

being depreciated 7,373,204 - - 7,373,204
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings, grounds, and improvements 11,817,319 100,957 - 12,018,276
Infrastructure 4,845,232 - - 4,845,232
Furniture and fixtures 110,998 - - 110,998
Signs 53,131 - - 53,131
Total capital assets,

being depreciated 16,926,680 100,957 - 17,027 637
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings, grounds, and improvements {1,414 679) (567,593} - {1,882,272)
Infrastructure (258,334) (146,054} - {404,388)
Furniture and fixtures (28,457) (22,200) - {50,657)
Signs (12,969} (3,542) - (16,511)
Total accumutated depreciation (1,714,439) (739,389) - (2,453,628)
Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net 15,212 241 (638,432) - 14,573,809
Total capital assets, net 3 22,585,445 5 (638,432) 5 - § 21,947,013

Included in the above amount is a development known as “Old Towne Morrow”, whose assets had a
net book value of approximately $9.5 million as of June 30, 2011. Due to the continued downturn in
the economy, the development has been temporarily closed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

LONG-TERM DEBT
A. Primary Government

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Bue Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental activities:
Capital leases $ 1104015 % - § (66,328) $ 1,037687 $ 68,926
Bonds payable 5,135,000 - - 5,135,000 1,220,000
Compensated absences 272,634 247,650 (232,184) 288,100 240,300

Governmental activity

Long-term liabilities $ 6511648 5§ 247650 $ (298512) & 6,460,787 $ 1,520,226

Compensated absences are substantially liquidated by the General Fund.

Capital leases. At June 30, 2003, the City was obligated under a capital lease with the Clayton
County Tourism Authority (the County), covering the Morrow Weicome Center building (the building).
In August 2003, the lease was terminated in conjunction with a bond issue described in the following
paragraph.

During August 2003, the Downtown Development Authority of the City of Morrow, a component unit
of the City, issued bonds in the amount of $1,500,000. The proceeds of this bond were used to
purchase the building from the County. Additionally, the Authority and the City executed a new
capital lease agreement covering the building. The gross amount of the building recorded on the
City's books as a capital asset under this capital lease was $1,500,000.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under the capital leases, and the
present value of the net minimurn lease payments at June 30, 2011:

Fiscal year ending June 30,

2012 3 107,982
2013 107,982
2014 107,982
2015 107,982
2016 107,982
2017-2021 539,912
2022-2024 223,018
Total minimum lease payments 1,302,840
Less amount representing interest {265,153)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 1,037,687
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Revenue Bonds. In June 2008, the City issued revenue bonds where the City pledged income
derived from a 1% special purpose local option sales tax levied by Clayton County to pay debt
service. The City's SPLOST revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2011, are as follows:

Series 2008 $5,135,000 SPLOST Revenue Bonds, due in annual
instaliments through May 1, 2015, including interest of 3.44%. 3 5,135,000

Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending June 30,
2012 5 1,220,000 $ 176,644 $ 1,296,644
2013 1,260,000 134,676 1,394,676
2014 1,305,000 91,332 1,396,332
2015 1,350,000 46,440 1,396,440
Total 5 5,135,000 3 449 092 5 5,584,092

B. Discretely Presented Component Unit — Downtown Development Authority

The following is a summary of long-term debt activity for the Downtown Development Authority for
the year ended June 30, 2011;

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Development Authority
Bonds payable $ 10,088,015 L3 - % (436,314) % 8,651,701 % 448,926
Note payable 1,259,295 - (56,968) 1,202,327 61,579
Development Authority
Long-tem liabilities 5 11,347,310 3 -3 {493,282) % 10,854,028 $ 510,505
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NOTE 6.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

B. Discretely Presented Component Unit — Downtown Development Authority
{Continued)

Bonds Payable. The Downtown Development Authority of the City of Morrow, issued bonds in the
amount of $1,500,000. The proceeds of these bonds were used to purchase the Morrow Welcome
Center building from the County. In June 2007, the Authority issued bonds (Series 2007} in the
amount of $10,000,000. The proceeds of these bonds were used to purchase the Macy's Building
from the City. In May 2008, the Authority issued new bonds (Series 2008} to refinance the Series
2007 bonds at a lower interest rate. Bonds payable at June 30, 2011, are as follows;

Interest Due Original Outstanding
Purpose Rate Term Date Amount Amount

Welcome Center Building 3.86% 20 years 2024 % 1,500,000 &% 1,037,701
Macy's Building 3.39% 10 years 2017 10,000,000 8,614,000
3 9,651,701

Bonds Payable. {Continued) Debt service requirements to maturity on the revenue bonds are as
follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2012 5 448926 % 331,071 8 779,997
2013 471,625 315,490 787,115
2014 494,430 299,125 793,555
2015 517,345 281,972 799 317
2016 534,374 264,027 798,401
2017 - 2021 6,971,621 309,318 7,280,939
2022 - 2024 213,380 9,651 223,031

Total - 3 9651701 & 1810654 $ 11462355

Notes payable. During September 2009, the Downtown Development Authority incurred debt in the
amount of $1,300,000 fo finance the purchase of an office building complex. The terms of the note
are as follows:

Interest Rate Term Due Date Amount
5.91% 3years 213 $ 1,202,327

Debt service requirements {o maturity on the notes payable are as follows:
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NOTE 6.

NOTE 7.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

B. Discretely Presented Component Unit — Downtown Development Authority
{Continued)

Fiscal year ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2012 $ 61579 8 69305 $ 130,884
2013 1,140,748 11,193 1,151,941

Total § 1,202,327 % 80,498 % 1,282 825

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
A. Plan Description

The City of Morrow Retirement Plan is a defined benefit plan that provides retirement and disability
benefits and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The City's Plan is a part of the
Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System (the "System"), an agent multiple-employer public
employee retirement system administered by the Georgia Municipal Association. The Public
Retirement Systems Standard Law (Georgia Code Section 47-20-10) assigns the City to establish
and amend the plan to the City of Morrow. The Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the System. The report may be obtained by writing to the Georgia
Municipal Employees Benefit System, 201 Pryor Street, S.W., Atlanta, Georgia 30303.

The City's employee participation is noncontributory. The City is required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate; the current rate is 9.96% of annual covered payroll. The contribution
requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended by the System's
Board of Trustees.,

At January 1, 2011, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, there were 184 participants
consisting of the following:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 37
Vested terminated employees not yet receiving benefits 38
Active employees 109

Total 184
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
A. Plan Description (Continued)

As of the most recent valuation date, January 1, 2011, the funded status of the Plan was as follows:

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) {UAAL} Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date {a) {b) {b-a) {al/b) {c} {{b-a)c)
01/01/11 $ 9343935 §$ 9798738 % 454,81 954% § 4769013 95 %

The required schedule of funding progress immediately following the notes to the financial
statements presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan net assets
is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial Kability. Actuarial valuations involve
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into
the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as results are
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Actuarial calculations
reflect long-term perspective. Calculations are based on the substantive plan in effect as of January
1, 2011,

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting. The financial statements of the Plan are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. The City’s contributions are recognized as revenue in the period in which the
contributions are due. Investment income is recognized by the Plan when earned.

iiethod Used to Value Investments. Plan investments are reported at fair value. Short-term
investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on a national
exchange are valued at the last reported sales price. Mortgages are valued on the basis of future
principal and interest payments and are discounted at prevailing interest rates for similar
instruments. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair
value. The method for determining the actuarial value of assets is part of the GMEBS actuarial
funding policy. This method produces an adjusted actuarial value of assets.

C. Funding Policy
The City is required to contribute all amounts necessary to fund the plan, using the actuarial basis
specified by the pension board. The funding policy for the Plan is to confribute an amount equal fo

or greater than the recommended contribution described below. Administrative costs of the Plan are
financed through investment income.
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NOTE 7.

NOTE 8.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
C. Funding Policy (Continued)

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the January 1, 2010,
actuarial valuation using the project unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7.75% per year,
compounded annually and net of investment expenses and (b) projected salary increases of 3% for
inflation and 0.5% for merit or seniority. The amortization method is closed level dollar for the
remaining unfunded liability. The remaining amortization period varies for the bases, with a net
effective amortization period of 11 years. These amortization periods are closed for this plan year.

D. Annual Pension Cost

Net
Fiscal Annual Percentage Pension
Year Pension of APC Obligation
Beginning Cost (APC) Contributed (Asset)
01/01/04 $ 271,262 100 % 3 -
31/01/05 252,420 100 -
01/01/06 255,766 100 -
01/01/07 299,462 100 -
01/01/08 303,559 100 -
01/01/09 522,256 100 -
07/061110 411,635 100 -
07 483,130 100 -

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The City participates in the Georgia Municipal Association 401{a) Defined Contribution Plan (the
Plan) which is administered by the Georgia Municipal Association through their service manager,
CitiStreet. The Plan provides retirement benefits to plan participants and beneficiaries. Plan
provisions and contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the City.
Employees are not required to contribute to the Plan. The City contributes an amount equal to 50%
of the amount contributed by participants to the City's plan, except that the City shall not match in
excess of 4% of the participant’s annual compensation. The City's contribution for each employee is
100% vested after five (5} years of continuous service. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, the
City's contribution to the Plan was $38,733.

Pursuant to the Statement Number 32 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred
Compensation Plans”, the City does not have a fiduciary relationship with the 457 plan. Accordingly,
the balances and ftransactions of the City's 457 plan are not reported in the City's financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

NOTE 10.

NOTE 11.

BUDGET COMPLIANCE AND DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

A. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2011, expenditures exceeded budget appropriations, as follows:

Fund Excess
General Fund
General government - administration 5 75,037
Capital outlay 6,682

These over expenditures were funded by available fund balance and larger than anticipated
fevenues.

HOTEL/MOTEL LODGING TAX
The City has levied an 8% lodging tax. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, $543,473 of

hotel/motel tax was collected. Of the total collected, over 50% was used for the promotion of
tourism within the City.

INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund receivable and payable balances as of June 30, 2011, are as follows:

Due From
Nonmajor
Governmental
Due To
General Fund 3 81,311

These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates of (1) collection of various taxes in
Special Revenue Funds, (2) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursabie
expenditures occur, (3) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (4) payments
between funds are made.

46



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11.

NOTE 12.

NOTE 13.

INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (CONTINUED)

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2011, consisted of the following:

Transfer to
Nonmajor Morrow
General Governmental Center Total

Transfer from
General Fund $ -3 154,887 % 113204 § 268,091
Nonmajor Governmentat 282,927 - - 282 927
Sanitation 132,426 - - 132,426

Total 3 415353 % 154887 % 113,204 & 683,444

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires collecting
them to the fund that the statute or budget requires to expend them and (2) use unrestricted
revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations.

JOINT VENTURES

Under Georgia law, the City, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the Metro Atlanta area, is
a member of the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC). During its year ended June 30, 2011, the
City's membership dues were paid by Clayton County, Georgia cn the City's behalf. Membership in a
regional commission (RC} is required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA), Section
50-8-34, which provides for the organizational structure of the ARC in Georgia. The RC Board
membership includes the chief elected official of each county and municipality of the area. OCGA
50-8-39.1 provides that the member governments are liable for any debts or obligations of an RC.
Separate financial statements may be obtained from: Atlanta Regional Commission, 3715 Northside
Parkway, 200 North Creek Suite 300, Atlanta, Georgia 30327.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Ciiy is involved in various claims and matters of litigation resulting from normal operations.
Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the City
attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have a materially adverse effect on the financial
condition of the City.

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies, principally the Federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts
already collected, may constitute a Hability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the
government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 14.

NOTE 15.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions,; injuries to employees and natural disasters. The Cily has joined
together with other municipalities in the state as part of the Georgia Interlocal Risk Management
Agency Property and Liability Insurance Fund and the Georgia Municipal Association Group Self-
tnsurance Workers' Compensation Fund, public entity risk pools currently operating as common risk
management and insurance programs for member local governments.

As part of these risk pools, the City is obligated to pay all contributions and assessmenis as
prescribed by the pools, to cooperate with the pools’ agents and atiorneys, fo follow loss reduction
procedures established by the funds and to report as promptly as possible and in accordance with
any coverage descriptions issued, all incidents which could result in the funds being required to pay
any claim of foss. The City is also o allow the pools' agents and attorneys to represent the City in
investigation, settlement discussions and all levels of litigation arising out of any claim made against
the City within the scope of loss protection furnished by the funds.

The funds are to defend and protect the members of the funds against liability or loss as prescribed
in the member government contract and in accordance with the workers’' compensation law of
Georgia. The funds are to pay all cost taxed against members in any legal proceeding defended by
the members, all interest accruing after entry of judgment and all expenses incurred for
investigation, negotiation or defense.

Settled claims in the past three years have not exceeded the coverages.
SHORT TERM DEBT
Line of Credit:
The City maintains, with a financial institution, an uncollateralized revolving line of credit in the

amount of $1,200,000, at an interest rate of 3.5%. As of June 30, 2011, $333,000 was
outstanding on this line of credit. This revolving line of credit expires on February 11, 2012,

Beginning Ending Pue Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Line of credit % -3 333,000 3 - 3 333000 % 333,000
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets {AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroli Payroll
Date (a) (b) {b-a) (alb) {c) {(b-a)/c)

1/1/2003 $ 5292883 § 5829397 3 336,514 940% $ 3,643,957 8.2 %

17172004 5,838,768 5,855,754 17,026 99.7 3,386,039 0.5
1712005 6,508,916 6,480,220 (28,6896) 100.4 3,199,444 {0.9)
1/1/2006 6,986,941 6,534,385 (452,556) 108.9 3,611,297 (12.9)
1/1/2007 7,518,302 7,110,947 (407,355) 105.7 3,888,441 (10.5)
1/1/2008 8,166,199 7,890,874 (275,325) 103.5 4,112,214 (8.7)
1/1/2009 6,956,352 8,534,903 1,578,551 81.5 4,526,903 349
1/1/2010 8,858,097 9,099,687 240,690 97.4 4,400,873 55
1112011 9,343,935 9,798,736 454,801 95.4 4,769,013 9.5

The assumptions used in the preparation of the above schedule are disclosed in Note 7 in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

The Emergency Communications Fund accounis for the fee collection and operations of the Emergency 911
system within the City.

The Hotel/Motel Tax Fund accounts for the Hotel/Motel tax receipts and distributions of funds used to promote
tourism within the City.

The Confiscated Assets Fund accounts for the collection and use of funds confiscated from convicted offenders.

The Excise Tax Fund accounts for the collection of rental car fees that are required to be remitted to the Economic
Development Department.



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

CONMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

Emergency Hotel/ Confiscated Excise
Communication Mote! Tax Assets Tax
ASSETS Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
Cash and cash equivalents 5 - 8 - 5 62,254 % - 5 62,254
Taxes receivable - 49,213 - 1,437 50,650
Accounts receivabie 15,852 - - - 15,852
Total assets 3 15,852 3 49,213 3 62254 1,437 3 128,756
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Acceunts payable 3 3164 5 3,595 & - 8 - 5 6,759
Accrued expenses 4,828 - - - 4,828
Due to other funds 7,860 45618 26,396 1,437 81,311
Total hiabilities 15,852 49,213 26,396 1,437 §2,898
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Law enforcement - - 35,858 - 35,858
Tetal fund balances - - 35,858 - 35,858
Total liabilities and fund balances 3 15,852 $ 48,213 $ 62,254 $ 1,437 $ 128,756

50



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMA.JOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Emergency Hotel/ Confiscated Excise
Communication Motel Tax Assets Tax
Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
Revenues
Other taxes $ - 8 543473 3 - 8 11,190 $ 554,663
Charges for services 154,887 - - - 154,887
Fines and forfeitures - - 88,160 - 88,160
Interest revenue - - 62 - 62
Total revenues 154,887 543,473 88,222 11,190 797,772
Expenditures
Public safety 309,774 - 75,318 - 385,092
Economic development - 271,738 - - 271,736
Total expenditures 309,774 271,736 75,318 - 656,828
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (154,887) 271,737 12,904 11,190 140,844
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 154,887 - - - 154,887
Transfers out - (271,737) - {11,190) {282,927)
Proceeds fram the sale of capital assets - - 92,500 - 92,500
Total other financing sources {uses) 154,887 (271,737) 92,500 {11,190} (35,540)
Net change in fund balances - - 105,404 - 105,404
Fund balances {deficit}, beginning of year - - (69,546) - (69,546)
Fund balances, end of year 5 - $ - $ 35,858 5 - 3 35,858
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
EMERGENCY COMMUNICATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues
Charges for services
Total revenues
Expenditures
Public safety
Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues under expenditures
Other financing sources
Transfers in
Total ether financing sources
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance
$ 143,600 $ 155,000 5 154,887 (113)
143,600 155,000 154,887 (113)
770,344 803,344 309,774 493 570
770,344 803,344 309,774 493,570
{627,344) {648,344) (154,887) 493,457
627,344 648,344 154 887 (493,457)
627,344 648,344 154 887 (493,457)
5 = B - 8 - -
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues
Other taxes

Expenditures
Economic development
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
Other financing uses
Transfers out
Tatal other financing uses
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance
$ 543,872 $ 588,872 3 543,473 5 {45,399)
237,844 292 944 271,736 21,208
237,944 292 944 271,736 21,208
305,928 295,928 271,737 {24,191)
(305,928) (295,928) {271,737) 24,191
(305,928) (295,528} (271,737} 24,191
3 - 5 - % - 8 -
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
CONFISCATED ASSETS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues
Fines and forfeitures

Interest
Total revenues

Expenditures
Public safety
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances {deficit), beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance
3 50,000 80,000 3 88,160 3 8,160
- - 62 62
50,000 80,000 88,222 8,222
50,000 80,000 75,318 4,682
50,000 80,000 75,318 4,682
- - 12,904 12,904
- - 92,500 92 500
N - 92,500 92,500
- - 105,404 105,404
- - (62,546) (69,546)
$ - - 3 35,858 5 35,858
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
EXCISE TAX FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Actual

Variance

Criginal Budget Final Budget

Revenues
3 11,200 § 11,200 %

11,190

$

(10

Other taxes

Other financing uses
(11,200} {11,200)

(11,190}

10

Transfers out

Net change in fund balance

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF SPECIAL PURPOSE

LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX - 2008 ISSUE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20141

Project

Pedestrian Path System Phase |
Pedestrian Path System Phase |I
Pedestrian Path System Phase Il
Barton Park Phase [V

Morrow CGonference Center

Olde Morrow Creek Corridar
Pedestrian Path System Phase V
Fedestrian Path System Phase VI
Lee Street Pedestrian Facility

Taotals

Original Current
Estimated Estimated Prior Current

Cost Cost Years Year Total
3 139,448 5 135,448 $ 135,850 - 139,950
690,000 690,000 268,386 10,127 278,513
861,025 861,025 451,329 - 451,329
377,901 377,901 - - -
4,051,626 4,051,626 5,095,143 - 5,095,143
2,160,000 2,160,000 1,828,781 - 1,826,781
230,000 290,000 - - -
290,000 290,000 - - .
1,000,000 1,000,000 - - -
3 9,860,000 5 9,860,060 $ 7,781,589 10,127 7,791,716
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
COMPONENT UNITS

The Downtown Development Authority is the City's redevelopment tool for commercial revitalization, The
Downtown Development Authority was created for property acquisition, renovation, and demolition.

The Morrow Business and Tourism Association is a vital economic parner of the City of Morrow. The Tourism
Association exists to provide special events to the community and promote tourism within the City. Contracts
between the Tourism Association and the City also provide economies of scale, resource efficiencies, and employee
benefit packages that neither party wouid be able to achieve on their own.

The City of Morrow Housing Authority was formed during the year ended June 30, 2009, to provide affordable
housing to the citizens of Morrow.



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Morrow
Downtown Business Morrow
Development and Tourism Housing Totals
Authority Association Authority
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users 3 968,945 $ 290,672 % - $ 1,258,617
Payments to suppliers (288,163) (179,276) (7.441) (474,880)
Payments to employees - {114,508) - (114,5086)
Net cash provided by {used in) operating activities 680,782 (3,110) (7.441) 670,231
CASH FLLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances from primary gavernment 319,083 - - 318,083
Contributions from primary government - - 7,000 7,000
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 319,083 - 7,000 326,083
CASH FL.LOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases and construction of property and equipment (100,957) - - (100,957}
Principal paid on bonds {56,968) - - (56,968)
Principal paid on notes payable and capital leases (436,314) - - {436,314)
Interest paid {420,142) - - (420,142)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (1,014,381) - - (1,014,381)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends received 41,688 - - 41,688
Net cash provided by investing activities 41 688 - - 41,688
Change in cash and cash equivalenis 27172 (3,110) (441} 23,621
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 37,893 7,350 601 45,844
End of year 3 65,065 $ 4,240 3 160 3 69,465
Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Contributed capital from primary government 3 - $ - 5 75,000 3 75,000
Total nencash investing, capitat and
financing activities 3 - $ - 3 75,000 $ 75,000

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Net operating income {loss) 3 (97,715) % (17.840) § (7.441) § {122,996}
Adjustments te reconcile operating loss {0 net cash
provided by {used in) operating activities:

Depreciation 739,389 - - 730,389
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease in accounts receivable 72,926 475 - 73,401
Decrease in inventory - 3,824 - 3,824
Increase in prepaid expenses - (1,232) - (1,232)
Increase in due to primary government - 3,263 - 3,263
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable (27,716) 7,216 - {20,500)
Increase {decrease) in accrued liahilities {6,102) 1,184 - (4,918)
Net cash provided by (used in) aperating activities 8 680,782 5 3110y & (7,441) & 670,231
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Morrow's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, required supplementary
information, and supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health.

Contenis Page

T E= TS £ LI =3 1 o L DS U USSR 58 - 64
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

REVENUE CAPACIEY .uevececnccr it erersres e st sas e ve e esese s e eacaassa ey b se s se s e s s st et st emmamn sneameeneennesaraens 65 - 69
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant local
revenue sources.

Dbt CAPACILY ...eeeeeerre st i sacs s es e e s e e s e s s e e sms R e e e s e e nas e bar e Ratbot st sarnae s senann ann 70-72
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current
levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic INformation........cccoceeineieiveciisessssseeseseressssersesssensasssossessessssnsssens 73and 74
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the City's financial activities take place.

Operating INFOPMEALION ..ot e e s s smssss e s e see e s emesassae s e P ae e sas e smem samemenaesensansas 75-78
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the City's financial report relates fo the services the City pravides and the activities it
performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the City's financial reporis for
the relevant year. The City implemented GASB 34 in 2004; schedules presenting government-wide information
(unless otherwise indicated) include information beginning in that year.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

PROPERTY TAX RATES
LAST TEN TAX DIGEST YEARS

Tax Digest State of City of Total Millage
Year Georgia Morrow ‘1 Clayton County School District Rate
2001 0.250 0.000 5.882 17.916 24.048
2002 0.250 0.000 5.154 18.916 24,320
2003 0.250 0.000 6.882 18.8916 26.048
2004 0.250 4.000 5.882 18.916 30.048
2005 0.250 4.600 7.781 18.916 30.947
2006 0.250 5.000 8,764 20.000 34.014
2007 0.250 5.000 8.535 19.836 33.621
2008 0.250 5,000 11.436 19.836 36.522
2009 0.250 6.000 11.436 20.000 37.686
2010 0.250 6.000 11.436 20.000 37.686

Source: Clayton County Tax Commissioner

(1) Includes maintenance and operations only

NOTE: The City of Morrow did not start callecting property taxes until 2004. Therefare, prior to 2004, there was a zero tax rate for the City of
Morrow.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND SIX YEARS AGO

2010 {Tax Digest Year) 2004 {Tax Digest Year)
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
Southtake Malt, L1LC $ 26,509,400 1 8.94% 3 27,508,600 1 9.29%
DDRTC 16,499,400 2 5.57%
Southlake Aflanta LLC 7,584,200 3 2.56%
ECM Southlake 7,363,400 4 2.48%
Cosico 7,307,345 5 2.46% 7.362,696 3 2.45%
Sherwin Williams 6,850,314 6 2.31% 6,147,494 5 2.05%
Paccar Inc 6,332,826 7 2.14% 5,471,115 g 1.82%
Scott H Lee as Trustee 6,075,000 8 2.05% 6,073,621 7 2.02%
Glenwood Morrow 4,477,800 5 1.51%
Clayton Place 4,053,790 10 1.37%
[nland Southeast 16,137,200 2 5.37%
Inland Southeast Southlake 6,085,000 6 2.03%
Rich's Real Estate Inc. 7,041,200 4 2.34%
OLP Southlake 5,640,000 B 1.88%
Secured Prop Investors 5,373,183 10 1.79%
ALL OTHERS 203,412,484 68.61% 207,223,216 68.97%
Total $ 296,466,059 100.00% 3 300,464,325 100.00%

Source: Clayton County Tax Commissionar

Note: The City of Morrow did not levy property taxes prior to fiscal year 2005,
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS

Errors, Collected within the Fiscal Collections in

Fiscal Taxes Releases or Adjusted Year of the Levy Subsequent Total Coliections to Date

Year Levied Adjustments Tax Levy Amount % of Levy Years Amount % of Levy
2005 1,094,214 & - 8 1094214 § 1,073,981 98.15% & 20,233 % 1,094,214 100.00%
2006 1,066,274 1,984 1,068,258 1,051,898 98.47% 16,360 1,068,258 100.00%
2007 1,366,192 14,787 1,380,879 1,344,975 87.39% 36,004 1,380,579 100.00%
2008 1,520,833 (19,307) 1,501,626 1,483,809 98.82% 17,727 1,501,626 100.00%
2009 1,550,823 (11,614) 1,539,209 1,497,633 97.30% 39,699 1,537,332 99.88%
2010 1,697,250 21,699 1,718,958 1,636,993 95.23% 43,371 1,680,364 97.75%
2011 1,567 965 {11,688) 1,556,277 1,501,774 96.50% - 1,501,774 $6.50%

Note: The City of Merrow did not levy property taxes prior to fiscal year 2005,

Source: City tax records.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

RATIOS OF QOUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Percentage
Governmental Activities of Estimated Personal
Total Actual Value Percentage income

Fiscal Revenue Capital Primary of Taxable of Personal Per {thousands
Year Bonds Leases Government Property Income Capita of dollars) Population
2002 - 8 29745 % 29,745 0.01% 0.03% § 609 § 85650 4,882
2003 - 08,987 98,987 0.04% 0.12% 20.28 85,650 4,882
2004 - 1,452,454 1,452,454 0.51% 1.70% 297.51 85,630 4,882
2005 - 1,400,066 1,400,066 0.47% 1.64% 286.78 85,630 4882
2006 - 1,345,340 1,345,340 0.45% 1.57% 275.57 85,630 4,882
2007 - 1,288,336 1,288,336 0.40% 1.50% 263,90 B5,630 4,882
2008 - 1,229,240 1,229,240 0.37% 1.44% 251.79 85,630 4,882
2009 5,135,000 1,167,830 6,302,830 1.86% 7.36% 1,291.03 85,630 4,882
2010 5,135,000 1,104,015 6,239,015 1.94% 7.28% 1,277.96 85,630 4,882
2011 5,135,000 1,037,687 6,172,687 1.82% 7.21% 1,264.38 85,630 4 882

Note: Details regarding the City's long term debt can be found in the nates to the financial staternents.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Assessed value

Amount of
outstanding debt

Total net debt
applicable to
the limit as &

Fiscal Year of taxable Debt Limit {(10% of applicable to debt Legal debt percentage of
Ended June 30, property assessed value) limit margin debt limit
2002 $ 293,788,878 $ 29,378,898 28,745 5 29,349,153 0.10%
2003 274,613,462 27,461,346 98,987 27,362,355 0.36%
2004 287,331,471 28,733,147 1,452 454 27,280,693 5.05%
2005 300,464,325 30,046,433 1,400,066 28,646,367 4.66%
2008 289,862,215 25,886,222 1,345,340 28,640,882 4.49%
2007 318,355,529 31,835,553 1,288,336 30,547,217 4.05%
2008 332,348,675 33,234,868 1,228,240 32,005,628 3.70%
2008 339,307,835 33,930,794 6,302,830 27,627,964 18.58%
2010 321,098,387 32,109,840 6,239,015 25,870,825 19.43%
201 296,466,059 29,646,606 6,172,687 23,473,919 20.82%
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

Percentage Amount
Applicable to Applicable to
Debt the City of the City of
Jurisdiction Qutstanding Morrow @ Morrow
Clayton County, Georagia- Overlapping Debt

Capital ieases payable 5 11,011,615 5.41% 5 596,086
Revenue bonds payable 23,495,973 5.41% 1,271,885
Subtotal Overlapping Debt 1,867,981
City of Morrow, Georgia- Direct Debt 6,172,687
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 3 8,040,668

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided hy the County. Debt outstanding provided by the County (as
of June 30, 2011) and City Finance Departments.

Note: Gverlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City. This schedule estimatas
the poriion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that could place burden on the residents and businesses of the City of
Morrow. This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay fong-term debt, the entire debt burden
barne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account.

@ The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using the assessed gross digest. Applicable percentages were estimated by
determining the portion of the City's assessed taxable value that is within the County's boundaries and dividing it by the County's total gross
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

DEMOGRAFPFHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Personal Per Capita Median Unemployment School
Year Population ! Income Personal Income " Age 'V Rate Enroliment
2002 4,882 (5} 85,649,808 17,544 (5) 30.5(5) 6.60% 1,316
2003 4,882 (5) 85,649,808 17,544 (5) 30.5 (5) 4.40% 1,374
2004 4,882 (5) 85,649,808 17,544 (5} 30,5 () 4.10% 1,280
2005 4,882 (5) 85,649,808 17,544 (9} 30.5 (5) 5.40% 1,312
2006 4,882 (5) 85,648,808 17,544 () 30.5 {5) 5.40% 1,312
2007 4,882 (5) 85,645,808 17,544 (5) 30.5 (5) 5.40% 1,312
2008 4,882 {5) 85,649,808 17,544 (5) 30.5(9) 5.80% 1,312
2009 4,882 (5) 85,649,808 17,544 (5) 30.5(5) 10.00% 1,313
2010 4,882 (5) 85,649,808 17,544 (5) 30.5 (5) 10.00% 1,313
2011 6,445 (7) 85,549,808 19,225 (7) 30.5 (5) 10.40% 1,313

Sources:

(1) U.S. Census Bureau
(2) Georgia Depariment

(3) Clayton Caunty Board of Education

of Labor

(4) Calculated at census - 1930

(5) Calculated at last census - 2000

{6) Georgia Department

(7) Calculated at last census - 2010

of Labor

73



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

TEN LARGEST EMPLOYERS IN MORROW
CURRENT YEAR AND FIVE YEARS AGO

2011 2008
Percentage of Percentage of
Number of Total County Number of Total County
Business Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Wal-Mart Super Center 325 1 4.88% 477 1 6.12%
Macy's 221 2 3.32% 141 4 1.81%
Costca 140 3 2.10% 119 6 1.48%
Target 135 4 2.03%
Bestbuy 107 5 1.61% 107 8 1.37%
Sears 94 & 1.41% 134 5 1.72%
Cracker Barrel 93 7 1.40% 110 7 1.41%
JC Penney 87 8 1.31% 213 3 2.73%
Barnes and Noble 59 9 0.89% 58 0 0.76%
Burlington Coat Factory 55 10 0.83% 60 2] 0.77%
Sherwin Williams 325 2 4.17%

Source: City records.

Infurmation prior to 2006 was not available.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

FULL TIME EQUIVALENT CITY EMPLOYEES BY DEPARTMENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year Ended General Potice Fire
June 30, Government Department Department Inspections E-911 Total
2002 24 35 26 1 10 96
2003 24 35 26 1 10 96
2004 24 a5 26 1 10 96
2005 26 36 27 1 10 100
2008 27 39 29 1 12 108
2007 33 37 34 1 12 117
2008 40 39 a7 1 15 132
20098 31 36 38 1 14 120
2010 25 35 a3 1 12 106
2011 26 34 40 1 12 113
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

PUBLIC SAFETY OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

Function 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Palice
Citations issued 11,016 8,628 7,508 7,503 10,352 14,055 22185 22,096 13,561 15,468
DUI Citations issued 33 87 61 48 76 124 260 109 122 04
Warnings issued 3,622 2,663 1,778 2,297 3,638 3,880 770 8,577 10,220 12,455
Crime Statistics:
Aggravated Assault 9 23 13 18 8 13 8 9 14 10
Auto Theft 162 179 186 138 98 64 68 65 57 49
Murder 1 - - - 1 1 - - - -
Rape 3 2 2 3 B - 4 2 - 2
Rabbery 42 42 3 32 33 33 24 21 i3 21
Burglary 53 49 41 54 a1 45 65 74 57 66
Theft 1,043 1,014 1,121 1,021 762 766 870 814 683 710
Fire
Incident responses 1,833 1,739 1,833 1,666 1,978 2,100 2,000 1,983 2,120 2,213
Public Safety Education
Events 78 82 113 78 113 115 115 112 113 114

Persons contacted 3,948 4,122 3,936 3,936 16,621 17,115 17,425 16,498 17,915 15,875

Source: City police and fire department records.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Function/Program
Police
Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Zone offices 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Patrol units 35 K| 35 43 43 43 43 43
Fire stations 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2
Public warks
Streets {miles) 29 29 k| 34 34 34 34 34
Streetlights 630 700 768 861 861 861 861 861
Farks and recreation
Acreage 80 82 85 125 125 125 125 125
Playgrounds 3 6 B 11 11 11 11 11

Sources: Various City departments.
Note: No capital asset indicaiors are available for the general government functions.



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year Ended Residential Commerciai Commercial
June 30, Permits Issued Residential Value Permits Issued Value
2002 37 2,777,300 65 34,373,056
2003 88 9,536,670 59 14,354,051
2004 az 3,730,650 54 5,809,390
2005 35 4,203,585 a0 4,148,642
2006 109 14,787,743 42 8,675,754
2007 49 7,554,925 44 5,657,668
2008 M 4,210,993 32 3,472,189
2000 13 148,762 17 2,015,804
2010 34 155,689 2931 5,169,072
2011 51 114,354 185 3,137,002

Source: City's Planning and Zoning Department.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

SINGLE AUDIT OF FEDERAL PROGRAMS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

CFDA Grant ldentification Eligible
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.5. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Direct programs:
ARRA - Community Policing Grant 16,710 2009RKWX0268 § 143,565
Public Safety Partnership - Tactical Division Task Force 16.710 9,843
Total Department of Justice Grant Programs 153,408
U.8. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Passed through the Affanta Regional Commission
Local Community Initiative - Southlake Area 20205 100,000
Passed through the Georgia Department of Transportation
ARRA - Jesters Creek Path Project 20.205 0008098 914,281
ARRA - Undempass Path Project 20.205 0006793 504,617
Total Department of Transportation Grant Programs 1,518,898
U.8. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Direct programs:
2010 Firefighters Assistance Grant 97.044 EMV-2010-FO-05089 32,297
2009 Firefighters Assistance Grant 97.044 EMW-2008-FO-02223 58,400
Total Homeland Security Grant Programs 88,697

Total Federal Financial Assistance

1,761,003

$¢



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation
The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Measurement Focus

The determination of when an award is expended is based on when the acfivity related to the award
occurred.

Program Type Determination

Type A programs are defined as federal programs with federal expenditures exceeding the targer of
$300,000 or three percent of tofal federal expenditures, The threshold of $300,000 was used in
distinguishing between Type A and Type B programs.

Method of Major Program Selection

The risk based approach was used in the selection of federal programs to he tested as major
programs. The City did not qualify as a low-risk auditee for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Amount Provided to Subrecipients

During 2011, the City did not pass through any federal funding to subrecipients.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL.
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Council
City of Morrow, Georgia

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Morrow, Georgia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise
the City of Morrow, Georgia’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 15,
2011. As discussed in Note 1, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, as of July 1, 2010. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Internai Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the City of Morrow, Georgia is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Morrow,
Georgia's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Morrow, Georgia's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
exprass an opinioen on the effectiveness of the City of Morrow, Georgia's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in itlernal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reascnable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

300 MULBERRY STREET, SUITE 300 « POST OFFICE BOX 1877 « MACON, GEORGIA 31202-1877 + 478-464-8000 » FAX 478-464-8051 » www.mjcpa.com
MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reparting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control cver financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Morrow, Georgia's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Council, others

within the City, federal awarding agencies and pass through entities, and the Georgia Department of Audits and
Accounts, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Peowtelise # Geonbinar, KXE

Macon, Georgia
December 15, 2011



CERTIFIED PusLec Accountants, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL.
EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Council
City of Morrow, Georgia

Compliance

We have audited the City of Marrow, Georgia's (the City) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circutar A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the City's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The City's major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditar's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
guestioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each
of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable fo financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issugd by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's
compliance with those requirements,

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2011.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considerad the City’s internal control over compliance with the requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our cpinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal confrol over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonabie possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis.

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.



Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
aclivities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Morrow, Georgia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report
thereon dated December 15, 2011, which contained an unqualified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit
was performed for the purpose of forming our opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City
of Morrow, Georgia’s financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain other procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule
of expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management, the City Council,

others within the City, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

PV esbtere ¢ G, KLEC

Macon, Georgia
December 15, 2011



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION |
SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified? yes _ X _no
Reportable conditions identified not considered

to be material weaknesses? yes _ X none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes _X no
Federal Awards
Internal Control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified? yes _X no
Reporiable conditions identified not considered

to be material weaknesses? yes _ X none reporied
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for

major programs Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required fo

be reported in accordance with OMB Circular

A-133, Section 510(a)? yes _X no
Identification of major programs:

CEDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
20.205 U.S. Department of Transportation; Highway Planning

and Construction

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? ____yes X _no



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

SECTION N
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

None reported.

SECTION I
FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None reported.

SECTION IV
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

None reported.



CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLC

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members
Of the City Council
Morrow, Georgia

We have examined management's assertion included in the accompanying Annual Report of 9-1-1
Collections and Expenditures about City of Morrow, Georgia’s compliance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011
with the requirement that information presented in the Annual Report of 9-1-1 Collections and Expenditures is accurate
and correct and that 9-1-1 funds were expended in compliance with the expenditure requirements specified in the
Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Section 46-5-134. Management is responsible for City of Morrow, Georgia's
compiiance with this requirement. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management's assertion about City of
Morrow, Georgia's compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with the attestation standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence
about City of Morrow, Georgia's compliance with the above mentioned requirement and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on City of Morrow,
Georgia’'s compliance with the specified requirement.

In our opinion, management's assertion that City of Morrow, Georgia complied with the
aforementioned requirement during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 is fairly stated, in all material respects.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and the Georgia Department

of Audits and Accounts, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

P cewbitsre £ G, KXE

Macon, Georgia
December 15, 2011

300 MULBERRY STREET, SUITE 300 = POST OFFICE BOX 1877 » MACON, GEORGIA 31202-1877 = 478.464-8000 o FAX 478-464-8051 » www.mjcpa.com
MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
Annual Report of 9-1-1 Collections and Expenditures
For the Year Ended JUNE 30, 2011

Line
No.

i Indicate UCOA Fund Type Used to Account fer 8-1-1 Activity (choose one):

X Special Revenue Fund ... Eaterprise Fund
2 Monthiy 9-1-1 charge billed to cach exchange access facility subscriber: b3 1.50
3 Total revenue from exchange access facility subscribers: b
4 Does 9-1-1 system provide automatic number identification of a
wireless telecommunications connection? (cheose one)
X Yes _ _Neo
3 If the answer 1o Line 4 is "yes", indicate below which of the
following apply (choose ong)
X System provides location of base station or cell site
System provides automatic location identification
6 If the answer o Line 4 is "yes", ideatify the monthly 9-1-1 charge
billed to each wireless telecommunications connection subscribes: $ 1.50
7 Total revenue from wireless telecommunieations connection subscribers: 3
8 Total Line 3 plus Line 7 (should equal UCOA Revenue Source 342500} 5

9 Additional revenue sources:
9a  Federal (UCOA Revenue Scurce 33,1000)
Identify each funding agency individually. Attach list, if necessary.

5
5
9  State (UCOA Revenue Source 33.4000)
Identify cach funding agency individually. Attach list, if necessary.
$
b
9c Local (HCOA Revenue Source 33.6000)
Identify each unit of local government individuatly. Attach list, if necessary,
L3
b
9d  Private (UCOA Revenue Source 37,1000)
Identtfy each private source individoally. Attach list, if necessary.
i
5

Page 1 of 4

72,611

74,336

146,947



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

Annual Repost of 9-1-1 Coliections and Expenditures

For the Year Ended JUNE 30, 2011

Line
No.

10 Investment Income (UCOA Revenue Source 36.1000 through 36.3000) 5 -

11 Other revenue sources not included above.
Identify each source individually. Transfess from other funds of the
local government should be reported on Line 25 and not included here,

Miscellaneous Revenue 5 7,940
I2  Total Revenues (total of all amounts reported on Lines § through 11) $ 154,887

Expenditures (UCOA Activity 3800)
13 Wireless service supplier cost recovery charges
(identify each supplier individually ot lines below - attach list, if necessary)

Cingular Wireless b 3515
Meiro PCS 3 4.158
Sprint/Nextel i 572

Total (wireless service supplier cost recovery charges) 5 8,643

t4  Emergency telephone equipment, including necessary computer hardware,
software, and data base provisioning, addressing, and nonrecurring costs of
establishing a 9-1-1 system;

l4a Lease costs b -
14b Purchase costs L3 -
l4c  Maintenance costs b} 43 380
15 Rates associated with the service suppliers 9-1-1 service and other service

suppliers recurring charges b 26,612

16 Employees hired by the local government sclely far the operation and
maintenance of the emergency 9-1-1 system:
Number of employees classified as: Full time __10 Parttime ___3

16a Salaries and wages b 541,944

166 Employee benefits 5 123916

17 Cost of training of employees who work as dispatchers % 4.764

18 Office supplics of the public safety answering points used directly in
providing emergency 9-1-1 systetn services

3 1,884
192 Building used as a public safety answering point:

19al Lease costs

19a2 Purchase costs

Page 2 of 4



CiTY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
Annual Report of 9-1-1 Collections and Expenditures
For the Year Ended JUNE 30, 2011

Line
No.

19b  Has the local government completed its street addressing plan? {choose one)
X Yes No

20 Computer hardware and software used at a public safety answering peint, including
computer assisted dispatch systems:

20a Lease costs
20b  Purchase costs
20c Maintenance costs

S 1433

21 Supplies directly related to providing emergency 9-1-1 system services,
including the cost of printing emerzency 9-1-1 public education materials

5 1,642

22 Logging recorders used at a public safety answering point to record
tetephone and radio traffic:

223 Lease costs $ -
22b  Purchase costs 5 -
3¢ Maintenance costs $ 41
23 Other expenditures not included in Lines 13 through 22 above.

Identify by object and purpose. Transfers to other funds of the local government

should be reported on Line 26 and not included here.

Travel § 155

Dues & Subscriptions % 245

General Liability Insurance % 20,320

Utilities k3 2,687

Small Equipment % 10,011

Books and Periodicals h 33

Postage & Shipping 5 17
24 Total Expenditures (total of all amounts reported on Lines 13 through 23 above) b 796,749
25 Transfers From Other Funds {identify by fund)

General Fund g 154,887

4 -




CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
Annual Report of 9-1-1 Collections and Expenditures
For the Year Ended JUNE 30, 2011

Line
No.

26 Transfers To Other Funds {identify by fund)

27 Proceeds from Capital Lease (identify by asset class and, if equipment, purpose)

28 Net Change in Fund Balance (Line 12 - Line 24 + Line 25 - Line 26 + Line 27)
29  Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
30  Fund Balance - End of Year

3la Do amounts on Lines 12, 24, 28,29, and 30 dgree to amounts reported in the
government's audited financial statements submitied to the Georgia
Department of Audits and Accounts?

X Yes No

3lb If the answer to Line 31a is "no", provide explanation (including amounts) to reconcile
each line item specified in Line 31a above to government's audited financial statements. Reconciliation
should be attached to this report.

Certification of Local Government Officials

Lhave reviewed the information presented in this report and certify that it is accurate and correct. T further certify that
the 9-1-1 funds were expended in compliance with the expenditure requirements specified in the Official Code of Georgia
Annotated (OCGA), Section 46-5-134, [ understand that, in accordance with QCGA Section 46-3-134(m)(2), any lacal
government which makes expenditures not in compliance with this Code section may be held liable for pro rata
reimbursentent to tefephone and wireless telecommunications subscribers of amounts improperly expended. Further, the
roncempliant focal governiment shail be solety finaneinly responsible for the reimbursement and for any costs

associaled with the reimbursement. Such reimbursement shall be accomplished by service providers abating the
imposition of the 9-1-F charges and 9-1-1 wireless enhanced charges until such abatement equals the total amount

of the rebate,

by
Signature of Chief Etfected Official ( )j/)”)f L M}M’f;ﬁ%ﬂ Date 10/17/2011
i

Print Name of Chicf Elected Qfficial ‘j { fVi Mi ” [ron.S
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